
 

To sensitively manage the natural resources entrusted to our care, to provide the people of Montara - Moss Beach with reliable, high – 
quality water, wastewater, and trash disposal at an equitable price, and to ensure the fiscal and environmental vitality of the district for 
future generations. Be open to providing other services desired by our community. 

AGENDA 
District Board of Directors 

 

May 7, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. 
 

DUE TO COVID-19, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED REMOTELY PURSUANT TO THE 

PROVISIONS OF THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-20 AND N-29-20 TEMPORARILY 

SUSPENDING AND MODIFYING CERTAIN TELECONFERENCE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE 

RALPH M. BROWN ACT.  MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING IN 

PERSON. 

 
Directors, staff and the public may participate remotely via the application ZOOM: 
 
 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 
WEBSITE: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82499192316?pwd=RVVtb2QrK21CbGpFY3ptaTVDQVFTZz09  

MEETING ID: 824 9919 2316 
Password: 605446 

 

CALL IN PHONE NUMBER:  +1 669 900 9128 

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS for remote access are available at  https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-
Joining-a-Meeting. You also may view video during the meeting via live stream or after the meeting at 
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/wuZKb9gwEY7sMACIIsr7VSJglB35kNZA/stream/159?fullscreen=true&sho

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82499192316?pwd=RVVtb2QrK21CbGpFY3ptaTVDQVFTZz09
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/wuZKb9gwEY7sMACIIsr7VSJglB35kNZA/stream/159?fullscreen=true&showtabssearch=false&autostart=false


wtabssearch=false&autostart=false . If you experience technical difficulties or have technical questions prior to 
or during the meeting, please contact MWSD’s IT support at (650) 728-7843.   
Note: Public participation is not permitted during closed session discussion items.  
 

Public Comment 
In accordance with the Government Code, members of the public may address the Board on specific 
agenda items when the matter is announced by the Board President. Any other item of interest that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the District may be addressed during the Oral Comments 
portion of the meeting.  A “raise hand” button available for every Zoom user can be used to alert the 
President of the intent to comment.  
 
Public comment also may be submitted in writing (in accordance with the three-minute per speaker 
limit) via email to info@mwsd.net up to one-hour prior to the scheduled meeting time.  Please indicate 
in your email the agenda item to which your comment applies. The District Clerk will read all 
comments into the record. Comments and materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted after 
distribution of the Agenda Packet are available in the District Clerk’s office during normal business 
hours and may also be available on the District’s web site (www.mwsd.montara.org) subject to staff’s 
ability to post the documents before the meeting. 
 
Upon request, this Agenda and written agenda materials will be made available in appropriate 
alternative formats to persons with a disability. Request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting should be emailed to info@mwsd.net or 
submitted by phone at 650-728-3545 at least two days before the meeting. Requests will be granted 
whenever possible and resolved in favor of accessibility.  
 
 
Subject to Change: Given the current public health emergency and the rapidly evolving federal, state, 
and local orders, the format of this meeting may be altered, or the meeting may be canceled. You may 
check on the status of the meeting by visiting the District’s website at:  http://mwsd.montara.org . 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT 
ORAL COMMENTS (Items other than those on the agenda) 

PUBLIC HEARING  

CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Approve Minutes for Regular Scheduled Board Meetings April 2, and April 16, 
2020. 
2. Approve Financial Statements for March 2020. 

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/wuZKb9gwEY7sMACIIsr7VSJglB35kNZA/stream/159?fullscreen=true&showtabssearch=false&autostart=false
mailto:info@mwsd.net
http://www.mwsd.montara.org/
mailto:info@mwsd.net
http://mwsd.montara.org/
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/167/Consent_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/167/Consent_1.pdf
http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/167/Consent_2.pdf


3. Approve Warrants for May 1, 2020. 
4. SAM Flow Report for March 2020. 
5. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio. 
6. Connection Permit Applications Received.  
7. Monthly Water Production Report.  
8. Rain Report.  
9. Solar Energy Report.  
10. Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service Report for February 2020. 
 

OLD BUSINESS (none) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Review and Possible Action Concerning Draft MWSD Budget. 
2. Review and Possible Action Concerning Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside FY 17-18 

Audited Financial Statements. 
3. Review and Possible Action Concerning Remote Location for June 4, 2020 Public 

Hearing re: Proposition 218 Rate Increases (COVID-19). 

REPORTS 

1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Slater-Carter). 
2. MidCoast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter). 
3. CSDA Report (Lohman). 
4. LAFCo Report (Lohman). 
5. Attorney’s Report (Fitzgerald). 
6. Directors’ Reports. 
7. General Manager’s Report (Heldmaier). 

FUTURE AGENDAS 

1. District Water and Sewer Budgets. 
2. District Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Programs. 
3. June 4 Public Hearing for Water System Reliability Charge and Sewer Service 

Charge Increase.  
4. June 4 Public Hearing for Master Fee Schedule Adjustment. 
5. MWSD District General Obligation Bonds Refinancing. 
6. SAM Budget. 
7. MWSD Defined Benefit Plan Actuarial Evaluation. 

 

 

CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/167/Consent_3.pdf
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http://mwsd.montara.org/assets/docs/board/collateral/167/Consent_5.pdf
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(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)) 
Case Name: City of Half Moon Bay v. Granada Community Services District, et al. 
(Santa Clara County Super. Crt. No. 17CV316927) 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
    (Government Code §54956.9(d)(4)) 
 Initiation of Litigation 
 Number of cases: 1 

 

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF ANY  

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The District has a curfew of 10:30 p.m. for all meetings. The meeting may 
be extended for one hour by vote of the Board. 

 











































































































M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

  

SUBJECT:   Unaudited Financial Statements – Executive 

Summary 

 
Budget vs. Actual – Sewer July 2019 thru March 2020 Variances over 
$2,000: 
  

• 4400 Fees, $5,154 below budget – overall reduced activity, especially in 
inspection and remodel fees. 

• 4610 Property Tax Receipts, $152,629 above Budget – ERAF collections 
totals $139,294 for the current fiscal year.  

• 4710 Sewer Service Charges, $529,416 below Budget – One 
apportionment received in February, additional to be caught up later in 
fiscal year. 

• 4720 Sewer Service Refunds, customer, $3,245 above Budget – Sewer 
service adjustments posted to various accounts. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending March 31, 2020 
was $382,401 below budget. Total income received to date is 
$2,070,582. 

• 5200 Board of Directors, $3,315 below Budget – Election expense 
budgeted for, but, due to timing, expense is not expected in current fiscal 
year. 

• 5250 Conference Attendance, $3,512 below Budget – No activity in 
March.  

• 5270 Information Systems, $12,396 above Budget – Variance is currently 
being investigated.  

• 5400 Legal, $216,852 below Budget – Expense line item expected to grow 
as on-going legal matters move forward.  

• 5510 Maintenance, office, $2,662 below Budget – Larger maintenance 
projects expected during the fiscal year.  

• 5560 Printing & Publishing, $3,130 below Budget – Minimal activity in 
March.   

• 5610 Accounting, $4,725 above Budget – increased costs associated with 
the preparation of the FY 20-21 budget. 

• 5630 Consulting, $8,282 above Budget – Increase due to increase in 
public relations costs.  

• 5640 Data Services, $4,650 below Budget – No activity in current fiscal 
year.  

• 5730 Telephone & Internet, $5,653 above Budget – Service provider’s 
continually raise rates after initial promotion ends. GM to re-evaluate. 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

         Prepared for the Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 
    

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
   

• 5800 Labor, $2,875 above Budget – Payroll costs are constantly managed 
to reduce OT and on-call pay.  

• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $15,000 below Budget – No claims paid 
in current fiscal year.  

• 6200 Engineering, $21,166 below Budget – Minimal activity in the current 
fiscal year, due to the timing of billing.  

• 6400 Pumping, $2,633 below Budget – Catch up bill paid in March in the 
amount of $10,284. 

• 6600 Collection/Transmission, $7,500 below Budget – No activity to date.  

• 6940 SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys, $30,000 below Budget – No 
activity to date.    

• 6950 SAM Maintenance, Pumping, $45,760 above Budget – Payment 
made to SAM for pump and lift station repairs. Costs to be capitalized at 
fiscal year end.  

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending March 31, 
2020 were $31,721 below Budget.  

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending March 31, 2020 were 
$237,615 below budget.  For a net ordinary income of $144,787, 
budget vs. actual.  Actual net ordinary income is $24,575. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $15,157 below Budget – Three new construction 
issue and one remodel connection issued in March. 

• 7200 Interest Income, LAIF, $44,714 above budget – LAIF has been 
outperforming projections.   

• 8000 CIP, $936,448 below Budget – additional construction projects to 
begin later in fiscal year. 
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                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
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Budget vs. Actual – Water July 2019 thru March 2020 Variances over 
$2,000: 

 

• 4400 Fees, $16,581 above budget – Over-budget due to $10K deposit 
received for Big Wave. Amount is to be re-classified to the balance sheet.   

• 4610 Property Tax Receipts, $152,629 above Budget – ERAF collections 
totals $139,294 for the current fiscal year. 

• 4740 Testing, Backflow, $4,764 above Budget – Difference due to timing.  

• 4990 Other Revenue, $54,439 – revenue is from Big Wave for application 
cost reimbursement ($44K) & an insurance reimbursement ($10K).  

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending March 31, 2020 
was $231,499 above budget. Total revenue received to date is 
$1,878,749. 

• 5240 CDPH Fees, $2,656 below Budget – CA SWRCB annual fee was 
less than anticipated. 

• 5250 Conference Attendance, $3,354 below Budget – One activity in 
March. 

• 5270 Information Systems, $6,873 above Budget – Variance is currently 
being investigated.   

• 5400 Legal, $92,784 below Budget – Expense line item expected to grow 
as on-going legal matters move forward.  

• 5530 Membership, $8,275 above Budget – ACWA & CA rural 
memberships paid in December. Variance to decrease as fiscal year 
moves forward. 

• 5610 Accounting, $4,725 above budget – increased costs associated with 
the preparation of the FY 20-21 budget.  

• 5630 Consulting, $34,074 below Budget – Sewer rate study is currently 
underway and will run concurrently with the Water rate study. Bills will be 
paid when deliverables have been accepted by the board. 

• 5720 Telephone & Internet, $6,989 above Budget – Service provider’s 
continually raise rates after initial promotion ends. GM to re-evaluate.  

• 5800 Labor, $67,179 below Budget – The District budgeted to have a 4th 
water operator in the current fiscal year. This has occurred as of March 
2020.   

• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $6,805 – One claim paid in March for 
Truck accident.  

• 6180 Communications, $9,586 below Budget – Minimal activity in current 
fiscal year. SCADA maintenance costs expected later in fiscal year. 

• 6195 Education & training, $3,453 below Budget – Under budget due to 
District not having 4th operator to send to cert training. 
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• 6200 Engineering, $145,697 below Budget – Water Quality engineering 
expenses have been held in check.  

• 6320 Equipment & tools, Expensed, $9,846 above Budget – Expenses to 
be investigated further for possible capitalization.  

• 6330 Facilities, $36,934 below Budget – Maintenance & landscaping tree 
projects have not yet taken place.   

• 6370 Lab supplies & equipment, $5,321 above Budget – Large bill paid in 
September, variance expected to decrease as fiscal year moves forward. 

• 6400 Pumping, $7,274 above Budget – PG&E “catch-up” bill paid in 
March.  

• 6500 Supply, $3,377 below Budget – One payment made to the County 
for water purchases at Airport Well.  

• 6700 Treatment, $4,510 above Budget –More chemical purchases than 
anticipated through December. 

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending March 31, 
2020 were $177,077 below Budget. 

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending March 31, 2020 were 
$350,375 below budget. For a net ordinary income of $581,874, 
budgeted vs. actual. Actual net ordinary income is $574,241. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $51,961 below Budget – Three new Construction 
sold, three PFP connections or new full connections sold in March. 

• 7600 Bond Revenues, GO Bond, $204,219 below Budget – One 
apportionment received in March. 

• 8000 CIP, $414,932 above Budget – $45,425 in capital improvements 
paid for in March which included $11,122 for February. 

• 9100 Interest Expense-GO Bonds, $57,634 below Budget – Difference 
due to timing.  

• 9150 SRF Loan, $109,250 below Budget – Difference due to timing.    
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
This is for Board information only 



Sewer

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 28,379.34 27,749.97 629.37
4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 3,794.00 2,700.00 1,094.00
4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 542.00 1,500.03 -958.03
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 3,584.00 2,625.03 958.97
4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 512.00 2,999.97 -2,487.97
4460 · Remodel Fees 2,239.00 6,000.03 -3,761.03

Total 4400 · Fees 10,671.00 15,825.06 -5,154.06

4510 · Grants 112.00
4610 · Property Tax Receipts 290,129.39 137,500.00 152,629.39
4710 · Sewer Service Charges 1,728,242.83 2,257,659.00 -529,416.17
4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer -6,244.71 -2,999.97 -3,244.74
4760 · Waste Collection Revenues 17,302.24 17,250.03 52.21
4990 · Other Revenue 1,990.06

Total Income 2,070,582.15 2,452,984.09 -382,401.94

Gross Profit 2,070,582.15 2,452,984.09 -382,401.94

Expense
5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 4,318.81 5,625.00 -1,306.19
5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 2,610.48 2,250.00 360.48
5220 · Director Fees 3,075.00 2,999.97 75.03
5230 · Election Expenses 0.00 3,750.03 -3,750.03

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 5,685.48 9,000.00 -3,314.52

5250 · Conference Attendance 238.30 3,750.03 -3,511.73
5270 · Information Systems 15,396.05 2,999.97 12,396.08
5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 375.03 -375.03
5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 0.00 1,500.03 -1,500.03

Total 5300 · Insurance 0.00 1,875.06 -1,875.06

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 1,766.00 1,500.03 265.97
5400 · Legal

5430 · General Legal 49,152.71 309,375.00 -260,222.29
5440 · Litigation 43,370.20

Total 5400 · Legal 92,522.91 309,375.00 -216,852.09

5510 · Maintenance, Office 3,337.71 6,000.03 -2,662.32
5540 · Office Supplies 4,231.28 6,000.03 -1,768.75
5550 · Postage 543.78 1,987.47 -1,443.69
5560 · Printing & Publishing 619.85 3,750.03 -3,130.18

9:27 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

04/12/20 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019 through March 2020

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Sewer

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

5600 · Professional Services
5610 · Accounting 27,225.00 22,500.00 4,725.00
5620 · Audit 8,150.00 9,749.97 -1,599.97
5630 · Consulting 34,532.12 26,250.03 8,282.09
5640 · Data Services 0.00 4,650.03 -4,650.03
5650 · Labor & HR Support 2,135.00 1,874.97 260.03
5660 · Payroll Services 749.71 749.97 -0.26
5690 · Other Professional Services 3,350.00

Total 5600 · Professional Services 76,141.83 65,774.97 10,366.86

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00 749.97 -630.97
5720 · Telephone & Internet 23,653.10 18,000.00 5,653.10
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 327.48 1,125.00 -797.52
5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 150.03 -150.03
5790 · Other Adminstrative -6.94
5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 16,009.56 12,751.47 3,258.09
5820 · Employee Benefits 31,521.84 36,230.22 -4,708.38
5830 · Disability Insurance 1,274.94 1,050.75 224.19
5840 · Payroll Taxes 11,656.46 13,934.97 -2,278.51
5850 · PARS 12,642.06 12,365.28 276.78
5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 87,009.43 83,799.72 3,209.71
5920 · Staff 100,792.06 94,894.47 5,897.59
5930 · Staff Certification 1,625.00 1,350.00 275.00
5940 · Staff Overtime 1,538.68 2,115.72 -577.04

Total 5900 · Wages 190,965.17 182,159.91 8,805.26

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 1,402.20 4,104.72 -2,702.52

Total 5800 · Labor 265,472.23 262,597.32 2,874.91

Total 5000 · Administrative 494,366.87 700,259.94 -205,893.07

6000 · Operations
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 0.00 15,000.03 -15,000.03
6195 · Education & Training 0.00 749.97 -749.97
6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 0.00 1,500.03 -1,500.03
6220 · General Engineering 25,334.05 45,000.00 -19,665.95

Total 6200 · Engineering 25,334.05 46,500.03 -21,165.98

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 0.00 749.97 -749.97
6330 · Facilities

6335 · Alarm Services 4,456.56 4,275.00 181.56
6337 · Landscaping 2,468.00 2,700.00 -232.00

Total 6330 · Facilities 6,924.56 6,975.00 -50.44

6400 · Pumping
6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 31,116.67 33,750.00 -2,633.33

Total 6400 · Pumping 31,116.67 33,750.00 -2,633.33

9:27 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

04/12/20 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019 through March 2020

See Executive Summary Document Page 2



Sewer

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

6600 · Collection/Transmission
6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 0.00 7,499.97 -7,499.97

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 0.00 7,499.97 -7,499.97

6770 · Uniforms 125.80
6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 800.82 749.97 50.85
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 439.03 119.97 319.06
6830 · Truck Repairs 621.96 749.97 -128.01

Total 6800 · Vehicles 1,861.81 1,619.91 241.90

6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside
6910 · SAM Collections 256,161.78 256,161.78 0.00
6920 · SAM Operations 1,146,854.52 1,146,854.25 0.27
6940 · SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 0.00 29,999.97 -29,999.97
6950 · SAM Maintenance, Pumping 83,260.22 37,500.03 45,760.19

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 1,486,276.52 1,470,516.03 15,760.49

Total 6000 · Operations 1,551,639.41 1,583,360.91 -31,721.50

Total Expense 2,046,006.28 2,283,620.85 -237,614.57

Net Ordinary Income 24,575.87 169,363.24 -144,787.37

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues
7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 87,483.00 112,500.00 -25,017.00
7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 47,359.36 37,500.03 9,859.33

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 134,842.36 150,000.03 -15,157.67

7200 · Interest Income - LAIF 82,213.62 37,500.03 44,713.59

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 217,055.98 187,500.06 29,555.92

Total Other Income 217,055.98 187,500.06 29,555.92

Other Expense
8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8075 · Sewer 178,115.59 1,114,563.78 -936,448.19

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 178,115.59 1,114,563.78 -936,448.19

9:27 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

04/12/20 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019 through March 2020

See Executive Summary Document Page 3



Sewer

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

9000 · Capital Account Expenses
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 12,802.44 11,415.78 1,386.66
9200 · I-Bank Loan 0.00 16,936.47 -16,936.47

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 12,802.44 28,352.25 -15,549.81

Total Other Expense 190,918.03 1,142,916.03 -951,998.00

Net Other Income 26,137.95 -955,415.97 981,553.92

Net Income 50,713.82 -786,052.73 836,766.55

9:27 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

04/12/20 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer
Accrual Basis July 2019 through March 2020

See Executive Summary Document Page 4



Water

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 28,379.34 27,749.97 629.37
4400 · Fees

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 4,336.00 3,750.03 585.97
4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 542.00
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 14,096.00 2,999.97 11,096.03
4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 1,024.00
4450 · Mainline Extension Fees 0.00 2,250.00 -2,250.00
4460 · Remodel Fees 2,682.38 1,500.03 1,182.35
4470 · Other Fees 4,400.40

Total 4400 · Fees 27,080.78 10,500.03 16,580.75

4510 · Grants 112.00
4610 · Property Tax Receipts 290,129.33 137,500.00 152,629.33
4740 · Testing, Backflow 18,264.00 13,500.00 4,764.00
4810 · Water Sales, Domestic 1,460,645.38 1,460,250.00 395.38
4850 · Water Sales Refunds, Customer -2,258.33 -2,250.00 -8.33
4990 · Other Revenue 56,396.30

Total Income 1,878,748.80 1,647,250.00 231,498.80

Gross Profit 1,878,748.80 1,647,250.00 231,498.80

Expense
5000 · Administrative

5190 · Bank Fees 833.69 2,812.50 -1,978.81
5200 · Board of Directors

5210 · Board Meetings 2,610.46 2,999.97 -389.51
5220 · Director Fees 3,075.00 2,475.00 600.00

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 5,685.46 5,474.97 210.49

5240 · CDPH Fees 9,156.40 11,812.50 -2,656.10
5250 · Conference Attendance 1,146.31 4,500.00 -3,353.69
5270 · Information Systems 9,122.50 2,250.00 6,872.50
5300 · Insurance

5310 · Fidelity Bond 0.00 375.03 -375.03
5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 1,173.00 1,874.97 -701.97

Total 5300 · Insurance 1,173.00 2,250.00 -1,077.00

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 2,465.00 2,062.53 402.47
5400 · Legal

5430 · General Legal 80,465.97 173,250.00 -92,784.03

Total 5400 · Legal 80,465.97 173,250.00 -92,784.03

5510 · Maintenance, Office 5,137.45 6,000.03 -862.58
5530 · Memberships 26,275.16 18,000.00 8,275.16
5540 · Office Supplies 4,231.11 6,000.03 -1,768.92
5550 · Postage 7,170.41 6,750.00 420.41
5560 · Printing & Publishing 1,474.47 2,250.00 -775.53

10:07 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District

04/12/20 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water
Accrual Basis July 2019 through March 2020

See Executive Summary Document Page 1



Water

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

5600 · Professional Services
5610 · Accounting 27,225.00 22,500.00 4,725.00
5620 · Audit 8,150.00 9,749.97 -1,599.97
5630 · Consulting 40,925.51 74,999.97 -34,074.46
5650 · Labor & HR Support 2,135.00 1,874.97 260.03
5660 · Payroll Services 749.60 749.97 -0.37
5690 · Other Professional Services 2,750.00

Total 5600 · Professional Services 81,935.11 109,874.88 -27,939.77

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00
5720 · Telephone & Internet 27,239.18 20,250.00 6,989.18
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 622.63 1,500.03 -877.40
5740 · Reference Materials 0.00 600.03 -600.03
5790 · Other Adminstrative 5,265.12
5800 · Labor

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 32,065.32 32,426.28 -360.96
5820 · Employee Benefits 51,077.80 66,082.50 -15,004.70
5830 · Disability Insurance 2,564.82 2,600.28 -35.46
5840 · Payroll Taxes 31,344.05 36,796.50 -5,452.45
5850 · PARS 24,879.51 28,226.97 -3,347.46
5900 · Wages

5910 · Management 87,009.48 83,799.72 3,209.76
5920 · Staff 296,943.79 335,130.03 -38,186.24
5930 · Staff Certification 8,283.13 8,550.00 -266.87
5940 · Staff Overtime 37,110.20 36,078.75 1,031.45
5950 · Staff Standby 19,210.56 17,436.78 1,773.78

Total 5900 · Wages 448,557.16 480,995.28 -32,438.12

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 6,953.68 17,493.03 -10,539.35

Total 5800 · Labor 597,442.34 664,620.84 -67,178.50

Total 5000 · Administrative 866,960.31 1,040,258.34 -173,298.03

6000 · Operations
6160 · Backflow Prevention 325.93 749.97 -424.04
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 695.00 7,499.97 -6,804.97
6180 · Communications

6185 · SCADA Maintenance 163.85 9,749.97 -9,586.12

Total 6180 · Communications 163.85 9,749.97 -9,586.12

6195 · Education & Training 3,297.49 6,750.00 -3,452.51
6200 · Engineering

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 0.00 375.03 -375.03
6220 · General Engineering 21,562.36 22,500.00 -937.64
6230 · Water Quality Engineering 118,115.31 262,500.03 -144,384.72

Total 6200 · Engineering 139,677.67 285,375.06 -145,697.39

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 15,846.32 6,000.03 9,846.29
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Water

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

6330 · Facilities
6335 · Alarm Services 538.56 600.03 -61.47
6337 · Landscaping 5,127.90 42,000.03 -36,872.13

Total 6330 · Facilities 5,666.46 42,600.06 -36,933.60

6370 · Lab Supplies & Equipment 7,196.21 1,874.97 5,321.24
6380 · Meter Reading 9.95
6400 · Pumping

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 57,061.89 67,500.00 -10,438.11
6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 20,908.20 7,499.97 13,408.23
6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 17.24 3,750.03 -3,732.79
6440 · Pumping Equipment, Expensed 8,562.13 524.97 8,037.16

Total 6400 · Pumping 86,549.46 79,274.97 7,274.49

6500 · Supply
6510 · Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 27.48 1,874.97 -1,847.49
6520 · Maintenance, Wells 10,635.88 3,750.03 6,885.85
6530 · Water Purchases 21,585.05 29,999.97 -8,414.92

Total 6500 · Supply 32,248.41 35,624.97 -3,376.56

6600 · Collection/Transmission
6610 · Hydrants 6,481.17 749.97 5,731.20
6620 · Maintenance, Water Mains 32,349.63 37,500.03 -5,150.40
6630 · Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 3,519.11 15,000.03 -11,480.92
6640 · Maintenance, Tanks 4,146.03 749.97 3,396.06
6650 · Maint., Distribution General 10,828.95 6,000.03 4,828.92
6670 · Meters 6,253.45 1,874.97 4,378.48

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 63,578.34 61,875.00 1,703.34

6700 · Treatment
6710 · Chemicals & Filtering 38,989.15 15,000.03 23,989.12
6720 · Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 12,611.19 15,000.03 -2,388.84
6730 · Treatment Analysis 16,659.76 33,750.00 -17,090.24

Total 6700 · Treatment 68,260.10 63,750.06 4,510.04

6770 · Uniforms 3,482.54 1,500.03 1,982.51
6800 · Vehicles

6810 · Fuel 4,537.97 7,499.97 -2,962.00
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 2,487.82 749.97 1,737.85
6830 · Truck Repairs 3,524.44 3,750.03 -225.59

Total 6800 · Vehicles 10,550.23 11,999.97 -1,449.74

Total 6000 · Operations 437,547.96 614,625.03 -177,077.07

Total Expense 1,304,508.27 1,654,883.37 -350,375.10

Net Ordinary Income 574,240.53 -7,633.37 581,873.90
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Water

Jul '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 · Capital Account Revenues
7100 · Connection Fees

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 100,608.44 112,500.00 -11,891.56
7130 · Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 57,430.11 97,499.97 -40,069.86

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 158,038.55 209,999.97 -51,961.42

7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 658,608.53 862,827.03 -204,218.50

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 816,647.08 1,072,827.00 -256,179.92

Total Other Income 816,647.08 1,072,827.00 -256,179.92

Other Expense
8000 · Capital Improvement Program

8100 · Water 827,057.64 412,125.03 414,932.61

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 827,057.64 412,125.03 414,932.61

9000 · Capital Account Expenses
9100 · Interest Expense - GO Bonds 230,538.67 172,904.22 57,634.45
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 12,802.47 11,415.78 1,386.69
9150 · SRF Loan 163,905.22 54,654.75 109,250.47
9200 · I-Bank Loan 11,062.63
9210 · Conservation Program/Rebates 1,350.00 2,250.00 -900.00

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 419,658.99 241,224.75 178,434.24

Total Other Expense 1,246,716.63 653,349.78 593,366.85

Net Other Income -430,069.55 419,477.22 -849,546.77

Net Income 144,170.98 411,843.85 -267,672.87
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Mar 31, 20

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Sewer - Bank Accounts

Wells Fargo Operating - Sewer 1,046,480.62
LAIF Investment Fund

Capital Reserve 3,947,359.67
Connection Fees Reserve 194,600.00
Operating Reserve 406,882.00

Total LAIF Investment Fund 4,548,841.67

Total Sewer - Bank Accounts 5,595,322.29

Water - Bank Accounts
Wells Fargo Operating - Water 668,495.08
Capital Reserve 398,249.00
Operating Reserve 46,009.00
SRF Reserve 48,222.00
Restricted Cash

Connection Fees Reserve 253,020.00
GO Bonds Fund 955,681.63

Total Restricted Cash 1,208,701.63

Total Water - Bank Accounts 2,369,676.71

Total Checking/Savings 7,964,999.00

Accounts Receivable
Sewer - Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable -1,785.11
Sewer - Accounts Receivable - Other -10,061.79

Total Sewer - Accounts Receivable -11,846.90

Water - Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 4,836.93
Accounts Rec. - Backflow 16,820.11
Accounts Rec. - Water Residents 171,748.89
Unbilled Water Receivables 258,319.70

Total Water - Accounts Receivable 451,725.63

Total Accounts Receivable 439,878.73

Other Current Assets
Due from Kathryn Slater-Carter 614.62
Maint/Parts Inventory 42,656.32

Total Other Current Assets 43,270.94

Total Current Assets 8,448,148.67

Fixed Assets
Sewer - Fixed Assets

General Plant 6,161,441.87
Land 5,000.00
Other Capital Improv.

Sewer-Original Cost 685,599.18
Other Cap. Improv. 2,564,810.39

Total Other Capital Improv. 3,250,409.57

Seal Cove Collection System 995,505.00
Sewage Collection Facility

Collection Facility - Org. Cost 1,349,064.00
Collection Facility - Other 3,991,243.33

Total Sewage Collection Facility 5,340,307.33

10:20 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District
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Mar 31, 20

Treatment Facility 244,539.84
Accumulated Depreciation -8,871,583.00

Total Sewer - Fixed Assets 7,125,620.61

Water - Fixed Assets
General Plant 27,314,280.48
Land & Easements 734,500.00
Surface Water Rights 300,000.00
Water Meters 1,058,985.00
Fixed Assets - Other 48,171.78
Accumulated Depreciation -11,800,511.00

Total Water - Fixed Assets 17,655,426.26

Total Fixed Assets 24,781,046.87

Other Assets
Sewer - Other Assets

Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 92,939.00
Joint Power Authority

SAM - Orig Collection Facility 981,592.00
SAM - Expansion 1,705,955.08

Total Joint Power Authority 2,687,547.08

Total Sewer - Other Assets 2,780,486.08

Water - Other Assets
Def'd Amts Related to Pensions 174,114.00
Due from Sewer 290,312.00
Bond Acquisition Cost OID 42,978.40
Bond Issue Cost 46,268.60

Total Water - Other Assets 553,673.00

Total Other Assets 3,334,159.08

TOTAL ASSETS 36,563,354.62

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable - Sewer 95,188.34
Accounts Payable - Water 166,969.06

Total Accounts Payable 262,157.40

Other Current Liabilities
Water - Net Pension Liability -60,375.00
Sewer - Net Pension Liability -32,045.00
Sewer - Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacations 5,943.33
Deposits Payable 27,592.13
I-Bank Loan - Current 29,929.31
Interest Payable 10,265.32
PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 9,701.02

Total Sewer - Current Liabilities 83,431.11
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Mar 31, 20

Water - Current Liabilities
Accrued Vacations 15,964.24
Deposits Payable 2,309.09
Interest Payable 98,256.59
PFP Water Deposits 4,302.50
PNC Equip. Loan - S/T 9,700.98
SRF Loan Payable X102 - Current 42,901.29
SRF Loan Payable X109 - Current 168,622.04
Temporary Construction Meter 14,180.52

Total Water - Current Liabilities 356,237.25

Payroll Liabilities
Employee Benefits Payable 6,801.00

Total Payroll Liabilities 6,801.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 354,049.36

Total Current Liabilities 616,206.76

Long Term Liabilities
Sewer - Long Term Liabilities

Due to Water Fund 290,312.00
Accrued Vacations 10,294.06
I-Bank Loan 725,417.82
PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 484,682.77

Total Sewer - Long Term Liabilities 1,510,706.65

Water - Long Term Liabilities
Accrued Vacations 11,967.24
Deferred on Refunding -169,190.00
GO Bonds - L/T 8,785,232.11
PNC Equip. Loan - L/T 484,682.83
SRF Loan Payable - X102 -0.66
SRF Loan Payable - X109 3,047,628.79

Total Water - Long Term Liabilities 12,160,320.31

Deferred Inflows (Pensions)
Sewer 20,838.00
Water 39,012.00

Total Deferred Inflows (Pensions) 59,850.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 13,730,876.96

Total Liabilities 14,347,083.72

Equity
Sewer - Equity Accounts

Capital Assets Net 3,408,252.20
Fund Balance - Unrestricted 8,646,292.87
Retained Earnings 42,547.87

Total Sewer - Equity Accounts 12,097,092.94

Water - Equity Accounts
Capital Assets Net 2,868,858.70
Restricted Debt Service 1,384,997.90
Unrestricted -1,562,801.59
Retained Earnings -42,547.87

Total Water - Equity Accounts 2,648,507.14
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Mar 31, 20

Equity Adjustment Account 7,275,786.02
Net Income 194,884.80

Total Equity 22,216,270.90

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 36,563,354.62
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 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Restricted and Non Restricted Cash Assets

 July 2019 through June 2020
Assets and Reserves Information

Target  $ Over/(Under) % Over/Under
Year to Date Cash Information July August September October November December January February March April May June Reserves Targets Targets

Sewer ‐ Operations
Wells Fargo Operating ‐ Sewer 1,187,446.23      958,547.87          731,831.78       410,053.97       498,542.18       2,286,080.52    1,531,279.28      1,555,409.43      1,046,480.62   

Sewer ‐ Reserve Accounts

LAIF  ‐
Capital Reserve 3,893,688.18      3,893,688.18      3,893,688.18    3,921,377.10    3,921,377.10    3,921,377.10    3,947,359.67      3,947,359.67      3,947,359.67    2,589,500.00      1,304,188.18       150%
Connection Fees Reserve 194,600.00          194,600.00          194,600.00       194,600.00       194,600.00       194,600.00       194,600.00          194,600.00          194,600.00       194,600.00          ‐                         100%
Operating Reserve 406,882.00          406,882.00          406,882.00       406,882.00       406,882.00       406,882.00       406,882.00          406,882.00          406,882.00       406,882.00          ‐                         100%

Sub‐total 4,495,170.18      4,495,170.18      4,495,170.18    4,522,859.10    4,522,859.10    4,522,859.10    4,548,841.67      4,548,841.67      4,548,841.67    ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

Water ‐ Operations
Wells Fargo Operating ‐ Water 1,053,121.02      1,067,125.08      1,082,273.73    1,097,201.83    612,797.42       627,029.30       642,109.43          655,072.36          668,495.08      

Water ‐ Reserve Accounts

Wells Fargo Bank‐
Capital Reserve 398,249.00          398,249.00          398,249.00       398,249.00       398,249.00       398,249.00       398,249.00          398,249.00          398,249.00       945,817.00          (547,568.00)         42%
Connection Fees Reserve 253,020.00          253,020.00          253,020.00       253,020.00       253,020.00       253,020.00       253,020.00          253,020.00          253,020.00       253,020.00          ‐                         100%
SRF Reserve 48,222.00             48,222.00             48,222.00          48,222.00          48,222.00          48,222.00          48,222.00             48,222.00             48,222.00          48,222.00             ‐                         100%
Operating Reserve 46,009.00             46,009.00             46,009.00          46,009.00          46,009.00          46,009.00          46,009.00             46,009.00             46,009.00          277,745.00          (231,736.00)         17%

Sub‐total 745,500.00          745,500.00          745,500.00       745,500.00       745,500.00       745,500.00       745,500.00          745,500.00          745,500.00       ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

Water ‐ Restricted accounts
First Republic Bank ‐ Water

Acquistion & Improvement Fund ‐                       
Cost of issuance ‐                       
GO Bonds Fund 1,406,233.55      1,447,509.18      874,341.24       874,341.24       875,737.43       896,853.63       1,457,563.78      1,459,915.79      955,681.63      

Sub‐total 1,406,233.55      1,447,509.18      874,341.24       874,341.24       875,737.43       896,853.63       1,457,563.78      1,459,915.79      955,681.63       ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

Total Cash and equivalents 8,887,470.98      8,713,852.31      7,929,116.93    7,649,956.14    7,255,436.13    9,078,322.55    8,925,294.16      8,964,739.25      7,964,999.00    ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           
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 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer

 July 2019 through June 2020

TOTAL

Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul '19 - Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4220 ꞏ Cell Tower Lease 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 28,379.34 30,833.34 -2,454.00 92.04%

4400 ꞏ Fees

4410 ꞏ Administrative Fee (New Constr) 1,084.00 1,084.00 542.00 542.00 542.00 3,794.00 3,000.00 794.00 126.47%

4420 ꞏ Administrative Fee (Remodel) 542.00 542.00 1,666.66 -1,124.66 32.52%

4430 ꞏ Inspection Fee (New Constr) 1,024.00 1,024.00 512.00 512.00 512.00 3,584.00 2,916.66 667.34 122.88%

4440 ꞏ Inspection Fee (Remodel) 512.00 512.00 3,333.34 -2,821.34 15.36%

4460 ꞏ Remodel Fees 114.00 542.00 271.00 651.00 661.00 2,239.00 6,666.66 -4,427.66 33.59%

Total 4400 ꞏ Fees 2,222.00 2,650.00 2,108.00 1,325.00 651.00 1,715.00 10,671.00 17,583.32 -6,912.32 60.69%

4510 ꞏ Grants 112.00 112.00

4610 ꞏ Property Tax Receipts 853.45 61,790.13 330.21 10,325.04 117,962.78 78,150.07 20,095.38 622.33 290,129.39 137,500.00 152,629.39 211.0%

4710 ꞏ Sewer Service Charges 496.20 1,544,087.78 183,658.85 1,728,242.83 2,508,510.00 -780,267.17 68.9%

4720 ꞏ Sewer Service Refunds, Customer -5,729.85 -367.36 -147.50 -6,244.71 -3,333.34 -2,911.37 187.34%

4760 ꞏ Waste Collection Revenues 1,416.21 2,888.11 997.86 2,852.02 979.34 2,710.71 1,261.90 3,052.26 1,143.83 17,302.24 19,166.66 -1,864.42 90.27%

4990 ꞏ Other Revenue 16.75 16.07 1,957.24 1,990.06

Total Income -552.18 8,766.21 68,591.25 6,335.49 16,581.71 1,667,767.03 83,890.23 210,610.75 8,591.66 2,070,582.15 2,710,259.98 -639,677.83 76.4%

Gross Profit -552.18 8,766.21 68,591.25 6,335.49 16,581.71 1,667,767.03 83,890.23 210,610.75 8,591.66 2,070,582.15 2,710,259.98 -639,677.83 76.4%

Expense

5000 ꞏ Administrative

5190 ꞏ Bank Fees 406.59 390.24 481.27 382.98 585.56 432.25 430.49 517.24 692.19 4,318.81 6,250.00 -1,931.19 69.1%

5200 ꞏ Board of Directors

5210 ꞏ Board Meetings 670.96 296.48 490.32 14.97 461.98 322.46 15.64 337.67 2,610.48 2,500.00 110.48 104.42%

5220 ꞏ Director Fees 225.00 337.50 337.50 562.50 187.50 450.00 637.50 337.50 3,075.00 3,333.34 -258.34 92.25%

5230 ꞏ Election Expenses 4,166.66 -4,166.66

Total 5200 ꞏ Board of Directors 895.96 633.98 827.82 577.47 649.48 772.46 653.14 675.17 5,685.48 10,000.00 -4,314.52 56.86%

5250 ꞏ Conference Attendance 35.00 203.30 238.30 4,166.66 -3,928.36 5.72%

5270 ꞏ Information Systems 974.50 6,273.55 639.00 300.00 7,209.00 15,396.05 3,333.34 12,062.71 461.88%

5300 ꞏ Insurance

5310 ꞏ Fidelity Bond 416.66 -416.66

5320 ꞏ Property & Liability Insurance 1,666.66 -1,666.66

Total 5300 ꞏ Insurance 2,083.32 -2,083.32

5350 ꞏ LAFCO Assessment 1,766.00 1,766.00 1,666.66 99.34 105.96%

5400 ꞏ Legal

5420 ꞏ Meeting Attendance, Legal

5430 ꞏ General Legal 5,882.50 4,514.00 8,965.26 8,386.88 21,404.07 49,152.71 343,750.00 -294,597.29 14.3%

5440 ꞏ Litigation 80.00 13,178.95 5,100.00 3,295.00 16,181.25 2,985.00 2,550.00 43,370.20

Total 5400 ꞏ Legal 80.00 13,178.95 10,982.50 7,809.00 16,181.25 8,965.26 11,371.88 23,954.07 92,522.91 343,750.00 -251,227.09 26.92%

5510 ꞏ Maintenance, Office 260.00 284.23 160.00 379.25 447.03 100.00 1,297.20 410.00 3,337.71 6,666.66 -3,328.95 50.07%

5540 ꞏ Office Supplies 870.19 391.66 26.52 439.29 224.73 457.47 706.55 1,114.87 4,231.28 6,666.66 -2,435.38 63.47%

5550 ꞏ Postage 78.03 154.85 154.85 78.02 78.03 543.78 2,208.34 -1,664.56 24.62%

5560 ꞏ Printing & Publishing 36.97 56.86 34.97 25.30 89.32 50.24 119.51 206.68 619.85 4,166.66 -3,546.81 14.88%

5600 ꞏ Professional Services

 Page 2 of 8 See Executive Summary Document
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 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer

 July 2019 through June 2020

TOTAL

Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul '19 - Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5610 ꞏ Accounting 5,150.00 4,750.00 4,450.00 1,850.00 3,250.00 3,525.00 4,250.00 27,225.00 25,000.00 2,225.00 108.9%

5620 ꞏ Audit 8,150.00 8,150.00 10,833.34 -2,683.34 75.23%

5630 ꞏ Consulting 1,093.75 806.59 3,669.58 5,996.90 3,456.63 5,386.72 14,121.95 34,532.12 29,166.66 5,365.46 118.4%

5640 ꞏ Data Services 5,166.66 -5,166.66

5650 ꞏ Labor & HR Support 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 427.00 2,135.00 2,083.34 51.66 102.48%

5660 ꞏ Payroll Services 76.98 75.82 76.98 76.98 74.66 74.66 144.31 74.66 74.66 749.71 833.34 -83.63 89.96%

5690 ꞏ Other Professional Services 3,350.00 3,350.00

Total 5600 ꞏ Professional Services 290.48 6,533.07 5,847.07 290.48 8,407.74 8,135.06 15,214.44 9,199.88 22,223.61 76,141.83 73,083.34 3,058.49 104.19%

5710 ꞏ San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00 119.00 833.34 -714.34 14.28%

5720 ꞏ Telephone & Internet 2,371.37 2,543.97 2,564.49 2,695.90 2,834.20 2,678.71 2,708.89 5,255.57 23,653.10 20,000.00 3,653.10 118.27%

5730 ꞏ Mileage Reimbursement 127.99 199.49 327.48 1,250.00 -922.52 26.2%

5740 ꞏ Reference Materials 166.66 -166.66

5790 ꞏ Other Adminstrative 7.85 -14.79 -6.94

5800 ꞏ Labor

5810 ꞏ CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 1,400.50 1,381.21 1,377.12 1,427.01 1,365.08 1,381.38 1,408.77 4,875.27 1,393.22 16,009.56 14,168.34 1,841.22 113.0%

5820 ꞏ Employee Benefits 3,908.30 3,908.30 3,908.30 3,908.30 3,972.16 3,972.16 3,972.16 3,972.16 31,521.84 40,255.84 -8,734.00 78.3%

5830 ꞏ Disability Insurance 141.66 283.32 283.32 141.66 141.66 283.32 1,274.94 1,167.50 107.44 109.2%

5840 ꞏ Payroll Taxes 1,445.79 1,008.14 1,005.49 1,065.47 995.25 907.73 1,587.05 2,094.71 1,546.83 11,656.46 15,483.34 -3,826.88 75.28%

5850 ꞏ PARS 1,374.15 1,345.19 1,311.49 1,378.85 1,311.51 1,345.16 1,378.83 1,833.42 1,363.46 12,642.06 13,739.16 -1,097.10 92.02%

5900 ꞏ Wages

5910 ꞏ Management 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 16,775.09 9,010.66 87,009.43 93,110.84 -6,101.41 93.45%

5920 ꞏ Staff 11,845.60 11,287.71 10,764.86 11,809.30 10,802.86 11,161.20 11,799.80 10,311.51 11,009.22 100,792.06 105,438.34 -4,646.28 95.59%

5930 ꞏ Staff Certification 150.00 150.00 150.00 175.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 1,625.00 1,500.00 125.00 108.33%

5940 ꞏ Staff Overtime 142.77 571.05 285.53 348.98 95.17 95.18 1,538.68 2,350.84 -812.16 65.45%

Total 5900 ꞏ Wages 20,741.84 20,326.72 20,232.15 21,016.07 20,098.08 20,202.61 20,746.04 27,381.78 20,219.88 190,965.17 202,400.02 -11,434.85 94.35%

5960 ꞏ Worker's Comp Insurance 701.92 700.28 1,402.20 4,560.84 -3,158.64 30.74%

Total 5800 ꞏ Labor 24,962.28 28,111.22 28,117.87 29,497.62 27,961.54 27,809.04 29,234.51 40,999.28 28,778.87 265,472.23 291,775.04 -26,302.81 90.99%

Total 5000 ꞏ Administrative 25,659.35 40,523.52 57,922.44 45,689.22 49,154.90 57,188.23 58,106.88 67,773.06 92,349.27 494,366.87 778,066.68 -283,699.81 63.54%

6000 ꞏ Operations

6170 ꞏ Claims, Property Damage 16,666.66 -16,666.66

6195 ꞏ Education & Training 833.34 -833.34

6200 ꞏ Engineering

6210 ꞏ Meeting Attendance, Engineering 1,666.66 -1,666.66

6220 ꞏ General Engineering 3,621.50 4,836.00 3,255.00 1,860.00 2,331.25 9,430.30 25,334.05 50,000.00 -24,665.95 50.67%

Total 6200 ꞏ Engineering 3,621.50 4,836.00 3,255.00 1,860.00 2,331.25 9,430.30 25,334.05 51,666.66 -26,332.61 49.03%

6320 ꞏ Equipment & Tools, Expensed 833.34 -833.34

6330 ꞏ Facilities

6335 ꞏ Alarm Services 391.80 518.82 836.10 518.82 391.80 444.30 518.82 836.10 4,456.56 4,750.00 -293.44 93.82%

6337 ꞏ Landscaping 218.00 250.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 2,468.00 3,000.00 -532.00 82.27%

Total 6330 ꞏ Facilities 391.80 736.82 836.10 250.00 1,018.82 391.80 944.30 1,018.82 1,336.10 6,924.56 7,750.00 -825.44 89.35%

6400 ꞏ Pumping
6410 ꞏ Pumping Fuel & Electricity 3,379.03 6,154.63 2,774.62 2,984.05 3,002.67 12,821.67 31,116.67 37,500.00 -6,383.33 82.98%

Total 6400 ꞏ Pumping 3,379.03 6,154.63 2,774.62 2,984.05 3,002.67 12,821.67 31,116.67 37,500.00 -6,383.33 82.98%
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TOTAL

Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Jul '19 - Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission
6660 ꞏ Maintenance, Collection System 8,333.34 -8,333.34

Total 6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission 8,333.34 -8,333.34

6770 ꞏ Uniforms 125.80 125.80

6800 ꞏ Vehicles

6810 ꞏ Fuel 800.82 800.82 833.34 -32.52 96.1%

6820 ꞏ Truck Equipment, Expensed 439.03 439.03 133.34 305.69 329.26%

6830 ꞏ Truck Repairs 621.96 621.96 833.34 -211.38 74.64%

Total 6800 ꞏ Vehicles 1,861.81 1,861.81 1,800.02 61.79 103.43%

6900 ꞏ Sewer Authority Midcoastside

6910 ꞏ SAM Collections 28,462.42 56,924.84 28,462.42 28,462.42 28,462.42 28,462.42 56,924.84 256,161.78 284,624.16 -28,462.38 90.0%

6920 ꞏ SAM Operations 127,428.28 254,856.56 127,428.28 127,428.28 127,428.28 127,428.28 254,856.56 1,146,854.52 1,274,282.50 -127,427.98 90.0%

6940 ꞏ SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 33,333.34 -33,333.34

6950 ꞏ SAM Maintenance, Pumping 4,341.08 23,883.47 27,191.82 1,984.82 5,485.51 20,373.52 83,260.22 41,666.66 41,593.56 199.83%

Total 6900 ꞏ Sewer Authority Midcoastside 160,231.78 335,664.87 183,082.52 155,890.70 157,875.52 161,376.21 332,154.92 1,486,276.52 1,633,906.66 -147,630.14 90.97%

Total 6000 ꞏ Operations 391.80 167,969.13 347,491.60 3,150.42 187,356.34 156,282.50 163,663.87 167,728.95 357,604.80 1,551,639.41 1,759,290.02 -207,650.61 88.2%

Total Expense 26,051.15 208,492.65 405,414.04 48,839.64 236,511.24 213,470.73 221,770.75 235,502.01 449,954.07 2,046,006.28 2,537,356.70 -491,350.42 80.64%

Net Ordinary Income -26,603.33 -199,726.44 -336,822.79 -42,504.15 -219,929.53 1,454,296.30 -137,880.52 -24,891.26 -441,362.41 24,575.87 172,903.28 -148,327.41 14.21%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues

7100 ꞏ Connection Fees

7110 ꞏ Connection Fees (New Constr) 964.00 26,378.00 60,141.00 87,483.00 125,000.00 -37,517.00 69.99%

7120 ꞏ Connection Fees (Remodel) 4,220.00 2,637.50 10,050.00 2,100.36 4,647.50 10,959.00 7,385.00 5,360.00 47,359.36 41,666.66 5,692.70 113.66%

Total 7100 ꞏ Connection Fees 5,184.00 2,637.50 10,050.00 28,478.36 4,647.50 10,959.00 7,385.00 65,501.00 134,842.36 166,666.66 -31,824.30 80.91%

7200 ꞏ Interest Income - LAIF 28,542.13 27,688.92 25,982.57 82,213.62 41,666.66 40,546.96 197.31%

Total 7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues 33,726.13 2,637.50 10,050.00 56,167.28 4,647.50 36,941.57 7,385.00 65,501.00 217,055.98 208,333.32 8,722.66 104.19%

Total Other Income 33,726.13 2,637.50 10,050.00 56,167.28 4,647.50 36,941.57 7,385.00 65,501.00 217,055.98 208,333.32 8,722.66 104.19%

Other Expense

8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program
8075 ꞏ Sewer 25,087.21 142,368.91 7,016.97 1,674.00 93.00 1,875.50 178,115.59 1,238,404.16 -1,060,288.57 14.38%

Total 8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program 25,087.21 142,368.91 7,016.97 1,674.00 93.00 1,875.50 178,115.59 1,238,404.16 -1,060,288.57 14.38%

9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses

9125 ꞏ PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,332.23 1,321.34 1,309.68 1,298.01 1,286.30 1,274.56 1,262.80 1,251.01 2,466.51 12,802.44 12,684.16 118.28 100.93%

9200 ꞏ I-Bank Loan 18,818.34 -18,818.34

Total 9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses 1,332.23 1,321.34 1,309.68 1,298.01 1,286.30 1,274.56 1,262.80 1,251.01 2,466.51 12,802.44 31,502.50 -18,700.06 40.64%

Total Other Expense 1,332.23 26,408.55 143,678.59 1,298.01 8,303.27 1,274.56 2,936.80 1,344.01 4,342.01 190,918.03 1,269,906.66 -1,078,988.63 15.03%

Net Other Income 32,393.90 -23,771.05 -133,628.59 54,869.27 -3,655.77 -1,274.56 34,004.77 6,040.99 61,158.99 26,137.95 -1,061,573.34 1,087,711.29 -2.46%

Net Income 5,790.57 -223,497.49 -470,451.38 12,365.12 -223,585.30 1,453,021.74 -103,875.75 -18,850.27 -380,203.42 50,713.82 -888,670.06 939,383.88 -5.71%
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Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Jul '19 - Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

ry Income/Expense
Income

4220 ꞏ Cell Tower Lease 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,153.26 3,083.37 -3,083.37 28,379.34 30,833.34 -2,454.00 92.04%

4400 ꞏ Fees
4410 ꞏ Administrative Fee (New Constr) 1,084.00 1,084.00 542.00 542.00 1,084.00 416.63 -416.63 4,336.00 4,166.66 169.34 104.06%

4420 ꞏ Administrative Fee (Remodel) 542.00 542.00 542.00 100.0%

4430 ꞏ Inspection Fee (New Constr) 1,024.00 1,024.00 10,512.00 512.00 1,024.00 333.37 -333.37 14,096.00 3,333.34 10,762.66 422.88%

4440 ꞏ Inspection Fee (Remodel) 512.00 512.00 1,024.00 1,024.00 100.0%

4450 ꞏ Mainline Extension Fees 250.00 -250.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00

4460 ꞏ Remodel Fees 380.00 380.00 119.00 1,261.38 542.00 166.63 -166.63 2,682.38 1,666.66 1,015.72 160.94%

4470 ꞏ Other Fees 692.40 130.00 3,578.00 4,400.40

Total 4400 ꞏ Fees 1,072.40 2,618.00 2,108.00 119.00 12,315.38 1,054.00 5,686.00 2,108.00 1,166.63 -1,166.63 27,080.78 11,666.66 15,414.12 232.12%

4510 ꞏ Grants 112.00 112.00

4610 ꞏ Property Tax Receipts 853.44 61,790.12 330.21 10,325.02 117,962.79 78,150.06 20,095.37 622.32 290,129.33 137,500.00 152,629.33 211.0%

4740 ꞏ Testing, Backflow 114.00 13,990.00 2,975.00 947.00 238.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 18,264.00 15,000.00 3,264.00 121.76%

4810 ꞏ Water Sales, Domestic 182,045.53 177,480.27 174,333.84 154,144.69 164,576.43 142,233.39 173,506.11 139,971.95 152,353.17 162,250.00 -162,250.00 1,460,645.38 1,622,500.00 -161,854.62 90.02%

4850 ꞏ Water Sales Refunds, Customer -1,061.41 -53.85 -222.93 -920.14 -250.00 250.00 -2,258.33 -2,500.00 241.67 90.33%

4990 ꞏ Other Revenue 54,423.00 16.07 1,957.23 56,396.30

Total Income 185,435.78 238,527.97 241,385.22 171,737.16 193,361.16 264,349.59 261,219.50 162,538.44 160,193.98 167,750.00 -167,750.00 1,878,748.80 1,815,000.00 63,748.80 103.51%

Gross Profit 185,435.78 238,527.97 241,385.22 171,737.16 193,361.16 264,349.59 261,219.50 162,538.44 160,193.98 167,750.00 -167,750.00 1,878,748.80 1,815,000.00 63,748.80 103.51%

Expense
5000 ꞏ Administrative

5190 ꞏ Bank Fees 44.53 54.03 218.22 209.40 117.80 189.71 312.50 -312.50 833.69 3,125.00 -2,291.31 26.68%

5200 ꞏ Board of Directors
5210 ꞏ Board Meetings 670.96 296.48 490.32 14.97 461.97 322.46 15.64 337.66 333.37 -333.37 2,610.46 3,333.34 -722.88 78.31%

5220 ꞏ Director Fees 225.00 337.50 337.50 562.50 187.50 450.00 637.50 337.50 275.00 -275.00 3,075.00 2,750.00 325.00 111.82%

Total 5200 ꞏ Board of Directors 895.96 633.98 827.82 577.47 649.47 772.46 653.14 675.16 608.37 -608.37 5,685.46 6,083.34 -397.88 93.46%

5240 ꞏ CDPH Fees 9,156.40 1,312.50 -1,312.50 9,156.40 13,125.00 -3,968.60 69.76%

5250 ꞏ Conference Attendance 35.00 185.01 23.00 203.30 700.00 500.00 -500.00 1,146.31 5,000.00 -3,853.69 22.93%

5270 ꞏ Information Systems 974.50 639.00 300.00 7,209.00 250.00 -250.00 9,122.50 2,500.00 6,622.50 364.9%

5300 ꞏ Insurance
5310 ꞏ Fidelity Bond 41.63 -41.63 416.66 -416.66

5320 ꞏ Property & Liability Insurance 1,173.00 208.37 -208.37 1,173.00 2,083.34 -910.34 56.3%

Total 5300 ꞏ Insurance 1,173.00 250.00 -250.00 1,173.00 2,500.00 -1,327.00 46.92%

5350 ꞏ LAFCO Assessment 2,465.00 229.13 -229.13 2,465.00 2,291.66 173.34 107.56%

5400 ꞏ Legal
5420 ꞏ Meeting Attendance, Legal
5430 ꞏ General Legal 10,637.50 20,591.25 9,562.26 12,663.87 27,011.09 19,250.00 -19,250.00 80,465.97 192,500.00 -112,034.03 41.8%

Total 5400 ꞏ Legal 10,637.50 20,591.25 9,562.26 12,663.87 27,011.09 19,250.00 -19,250.00 80,465.97 192,500.00 -112,034.03 41.8%

5510 ꞏ Maintenance, Office 319.46 284.22 160.00 379.25 447.03 668.06 1,961.97 917.46 666.63 -666.63 5,137.45 6,666.66 -1,529.21 77.06%

5530 ꞏ Memberships 277.00 10,732.16 15,266.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 26,275.16 20,000.00 6,275.16 131.38%

5540 ꞏ Office Supplies 870.14 391.64 26.51 439.27 224.73 457.42 706.56 1,114.84 666.63 -666.63 4,231.11 6,666.66 -2,435.55 63.47%

5550 ꞏ Postage 567.75 856.47 708.90 780.54 946.26 1,057.84 1,068.78 1,183.87 750.00 -750.00 7,170.41 7,500.00 -329.59 95.61%

5560 ꞏ Printing & Publishing 854.62 36.97 56.86 34.96 25.30 89.33 50.25 119.51 206.67 250.00 -250.00 1,474.47 2,500.00 -1,025.53 58.98%

5600 ꞏ Professional Services
5610 ꞏ Accounting 5,150.00 4,750.00 4,450.00 1,850.00 3,250.00 3,525.00 4,250.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 27,225.00 25,000.00 2,225.00 108.9%

5620 ꞏ Audit 8,150.00 1,083.37 -1,083.37 8,150.00 10,833.34 -2,683.34 75.23%

5630 ꞏ Consulting 1,093.75 806.59 10,063.02 5,996.89 3,456.62 5,386.71 14,121.93 8,333.37 -8,333.37 40,925.51 83,333.34 -42,407.83 49.11%

5650 ꞏ Labor & HR Support 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 213.50 427.00 208.37 -208.37 2,135.00 2,083.34 51.66 102.48%
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5660 ꞏ Payroll Services 76.98 75.81 76.98 76.98 74.64 74.64 144.29 74.64 74.64 83.37 -83.37 749.60 833.34 -83.74 89.95%

5690 ꞏ Other Professional Services 2,750.00 2,750.00

Total 5600 ꞏ Professional Services 290.48 6,533.06 5,847.07 290.48 14,801.16 8,135.03 15,214.41 9,199.85 21,623.57 12,208.48 -12,208.48 81,935.11 122,083.36 -40,148.25 67.11%

5710 ꞏ San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 119.00 119.00

5720 ꞏ Telephone & Internet 2,958.80 3,076.06 2,958.32 3,085.97 3,074.29 3,000.15 3,075.68 6,009.91 2,250.00 -2,250.00 27,239.18 22,500.00 4,739.18 121.06%

5730 ꞏ Mileage Reimbursement 127.99 295.14 199.50 166.63 -166.63 622.63 1,666.66 -1,044.03 37.36%

5740 ꞏ Reference Materials 66.63 -66.63 666.66 -666.66

5790 ꞏ Other Adminstrative 1,853.12 79.10 3,332.90 5,265.12

5800 ꞏ Labor
5810 ꞏ CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 3,200.51 3,181.17 3,131.46 3,338.98 3,200.65 3,192.48 3,275.40 6,426.36 3,118.31 3,602.88 -3,602.88 32,065.32 36,029.16 -3,963.84 89.0%

5820 ꞏ Employee Benefits 6,323.56 6,323.56 6,323.56 6,323.56 6,445.89 6,445.89 6,445.89 6,445.89 7,342.50 -7,342.50 51,077.80 73,425.00 -22,347.20 69.57%

5830 ꞏ Disability Insurance 284.98 569.96 569.96 284.98 284.98 569.96 288.88 -288.88 2,564.82 2,889.16 -324.34 88.77%

5840 ꞏ Payroll Taxes 3,656.75 3,241.27 3,128.18 3,369.98 3,190.85 3,134.09 3,870.36 4,027.19 3,725.38 4,088.50 -4,088.50 31,344.05 40,885.00 -9,540.95 76.66%

5850 ꞏ PARS 2,796.87 2,706.07 2,610.56 2,801.61 2,615.13 2,716.20 2,812.20 3,079.80 2,741.07 3,136.37 -3,136.37 24,879.51 31,363.34 -6,483.83 79.33%

5900 ꞏ Wages
5910 ꞏ Management 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.25 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 8,746.24 16,775.11 9,010.68 9,311.12 -9,311.12 87,009.48 93,110.84 -6,101.36 93.45%

5920 ꞏ Staff 34,653.88 33,263.83 31,291.05 34,255.36 31,150.01 32,996.60 34,879.00 30,529.43 33,924.63 37,236.63 -37,236.63 296,943.79 372,366.66 -75,422.87 79.75%

5930 ꞏ Staff Certification 911.25 850.00 850.00 875.00 1,196.88 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 950.00 -950.00 8,283.13 9,500.00 -1,216.87 87.19%

5940 ꞏ Staff Overtime 3,350.67 4,318.60 5,030.69 5,034.33 5,919.48 4,461.83 4,019.64 2,406.92 2,568.04 4,008.75 -4,008.75 37,110.20 40,087.50 -2,977.30 92.57%

5950 ꞏ Staff Standby 2,042.74 2,219.34 2,061.71 2,229.61 2,082.68 2,200.35 2,048.39 2,031.30 2,294.44 1,937.38 -1,937.38 19,210.56 19,374.16 -163.60 99.16%

Total 5900 ꞏ Wages 49,704.78 49,398.01 47,979.70 51,140.54 49,095.29 49,305.02 50,593.27 52,642.76 48,697.79 53,443.88 -53,443.88 448,557.16 534,439.16 -85,882.00 83.93%

5960 ꞏ Worker's Comp Insurance 3,450.24 3,503.44 1,943.63 -1,943.63 6,953.68 19,436.66 -12,482.98 35.78%

Total 5800 ꞏ Labor 59,358.91 65,135.06 63,743.42 70,424.91 64,995.44 64,793.68 67,282.10 76,410.42 65,298.40 73,846.64 -73,846.64 597,442.34 738,467.48 -141,025.14 80.9%

Total 5000 ꞏ Administrative 60,504.01 78,568.70 76,142.25 87,021.40 116,603.84 96,292.30 110,178.15 106,177.08 135,472.58 115,584.14 -115,584.14 866,960.31 1,155,842.48 -288,882.17 75.01%

6000 ꞏ Operations
6160 ꞏ Backflow Prevention 325.93 83.37 -83.37 325.93 833.34 -507.41 39.11%

6170 ꞏ Claims, Property Damage 695.00 833.37 -833.37 695.00 8,333.34 -7,638.34 8.34%

6180 ꞏ Communications
6185 ꞏ SCADA Maintenance 48.06 115.79 1,083.37 -1,083.37 163.85 10,833.34 -10,669.49 1.51%

Total 6180 ꞏ Communications 48.06 115.79 1,083.37 -1,083.37 163.85 10,833.34 -10,669.49 1.51%

6195 ꞏ Education & Training 2,195.00 566.24 336.25 200.00 750.00 -750.00 3,297.49 7,500.00 -4,202.51 43.97%

6200 ꞏ Engineering
6210 ꞏ Meeting Attendance, Engineering 41.63 -41.63 416.66 -416.66

6220 ꞏ General Engineering 12,389.54 9,172.82 2,500.00 -2,500.00 21,562.36 25,000.00 -3,437.64 86.25%

6230 ꞏ Water Quality Engineering 7,712.50 27,556.25 9,455.67 2,615.00 4,176.25 9,347.76 36,469.38 20,782.50 29,166.63 -29,166.63 118,115.31 291,666.66 -173,551.35 40.5%

Total 6200 ꞏ Engineering 20,102.04 27,556.25 9,455.67 2,615.00 4,176.25 9,347.76 36,469.38 29,955.32 31,708.26 -31,708.26 139,677.67 317,083.32 -177,405.65 44.05%

6320 ꞏ Equipment & Tools, Expensed 204.96 1,168.25 1,946.98 8,577.25 790.02 1,043.81 1,690.05 425.00 666.63 -666.63 15,846.32 6,666.66 9,179.66 237.7%

6330 ꞏ Facilities
6335 ꞏ Alarm Services 127.02 52.50 127.02 52.50 127.02 52.50 66.63 -66.63 538.56 666.66 -128.10 80.79%

6337 ꞏ Landscaping 483.00 1,050.00 691.28 550.00 850.00 603.62 350.00 550.00 4,666.63 -4,666.63 5,127.90 46,666.66 -41,538.76 10.99%

6330 ꞏ Facilities - Other

Total 6330 ꞏ Facilities 610.02 1,102.50 691.28 677.02 850.00 656.12 477.02 602.50 4,733.26 -4,733.26 5,666.46 47,333.32 -41,666.86 11.97%

6370 ꞏ Lab Supplies & Equipment 4,095.97 1,909.32 308.09 719.37 163.46 208.37 -208.37 7,196.21 2,083.34 5,112.87 345.42%

6380 ꞏ Meter Reading 9.95 9.95

6400 ꞏ Pumping
6410 ꞏ Pumping Fuel & Electricity 6,536.56 8,790.51 5,901.37 2,267.57 6,190.55 5,320.22 5,698.59 16,356.52 7,500.00 -7,500.00 57,061.89 75,000.00 -17,938.11 76.08%

6420 ꞏ Pumping Maintenance, Generators 7,631.82 3,815.91 44.02 1,183.22 1,173.00 4,136.12 2,924.11 833.37 -833.37 20,908.20 8,333.34 12,574.86 250.9%

6430 ꞏ Pumping Maintenance, General 17.24 416.63 -416.63 17.24 4,166.66 -4,149.42 0.41%

6440 ꞏ Pumping Equipment, Expensed 5,312.57 453.91 2,795.65 58.37 -58.37 8,562.13 583.34 7,978.79 1,467.78%
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 10:15 PM
 04/12/20
 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2019 through June 2020

Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Jul '19 - Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 6400 ꞏ Pumping 14,168.38 12,606.42 5,945.39 8,763.36 7,817.46 8,133.11 9,834.71 19,280.63 8,808.37 -8,808.37 86,549.46 88,083.34 -1,533.88 98.26%

6500 ꞏ Supply
6510 ꞏ Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 27.48 208.37 -208.37 27.48 2,083.34 -2,055.86 1.32%

6520 ꞏ Maintenance, Wells -815.00 36.76 11,414.12 416.63 -416.63 10,635.88 4,166.66 6,469.22 255.26%

6530 ꞏ Water Purchases 10,606.31 10,978.74 3,333.37 -3,333.37 21,585.05 33,333.34 -11,748.29 64.76%

Total 6500 ꞏ Supply -815.00 10,606.31 11,042.98 11,414.12 3,958.37 -3,958.37 32,248.41 39,583.34 -7,334.93 81.47%

6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission
6610 ꞏ Hydrants 6,481.17 83.37 -83.37 6,481.17 833.34 5,647.83 777.73%

6620 ꞏ Maintenance, Water Mains 2,587.50 16,308.94 6,407.56 7,045.63 4,166.63 -4,166.63 32,349.63 41,666.66 -9,317.03 77.64%

6630 ꞏ Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 3,519.11 1,666.63 -1,666.63 3,519.11 16,666.66 -13,147.55 21.12%

6640 ꞏ Maintenance, Tanks 4,146.03 83.37 -83.37 4,146.03 833.34 3,312.69 497.52%

6650 ꞏ Maint., Distribution General 223.81 7,203.14 3,402.00 666.63 -666.63 10,828.95 6,666.66 4,162.29 162.43%

6670 ꞏ Meters 1,599.42 4,654.03 208.37 -208.37 6,253.45 2,083.34 4,170.11 300.17%

Total 6600 ꞏ Collection/Transmission 1,599.42 6,957.34 27,031.19 11,061.59 16,928.80 6,875.00 -6,875.00 63,578.34 68,750.00 -5,171.66 92.48%

6700 ꞏ Treatment
6710 ꞏ Chemicals & Filtering 2,537.58 628.31 2,825.45 3,155.21 10,841.50 14,646.00 680.50 1,943.89 1,730.71 1,666.63 -1,666.63 38,989.15 16,666.66 22,322.49 233.94%

6720 ꞏ Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 574.99 30.72 11,659.11 7.10 137.89 201.38 1,666.63 -1,666.63 12,611.19 16,666.66 -4,055.47 75.67%

6730 ꞏ Treatment Analysis 937.80 7,518.32 600.05 1,646.35 1,039.92 1,218.75 1,056.98 2,641.59 3,750.00 -3,750.00 16,659.76 37,500.00 -20,840.24 44.43%

Total 6700 ꞏ Treatment 2,537.58 2,141.10 10,343.77 3,785.98 24,146.96 15,693.02 2,037.14 3,202.25 4,372.30 7,083.26 -7,083.26 68,260.10 70,833.32 -2,573.22 96.37%

6770 ꞏ Uniforms 761.41 1,407.57 151.93 487.62 225.84 400.62 47.55 166.63 -166.63 3,482.54 1,666.66 1,815.88 208.95%

6800 ꞏ Vehicles
6810 ꞏ Fuel 539.98 536.34 747.59 935.61 816.56 575.95 468.17 -82.23 833.37 -833.37 4,537.97 8,333.34 -3,795.37 54.46%

6820 ꞏ Truck Equipment, Expensed 2,926.85 -439.03 83.37 -83.37 2,487.82 833.34 1,654.48 298.54%

6830 ꞏ Truck Repairs 919.99 175.14 2,887.91 101.45 -560.05 416.63 -416.63 3,524.44 4,166.66 -642.22 84.59%

Total 6800 ꞏ Vehicles 2,926.85 1,459.97 711.48 3,635.50 935.61 918.01 575.95 468.17 -1,081.31 1,333.37 -1,333.37 10,550.23 13,333.34 -2,783.11 79.13%

Total 6000 ꞏ Operations 4,649.43 41,047.30 68,144.55 26,178.97 85,759.59 30,826.75 34,311.72 63,300.35 83,329.30 68,291.63 -68,291.63 437,547.96 682,916.66 -245,368.70 64.07%

Total Expense 65,153.44 119,616.00 144,286.80 113,200.37 202,363.43 127,119.05 144,489.87 169,477.43 218,801.88 183,875.77 -183,875.77 1,304,508.27 1,838,759.14 -534,250.87 70.95%

Net Ordinary Income 120,282.34 118,911.97 97,098.42 58,536.79 -9,002.27 137,230.54 116,729.63 -6,938.99 -58,607.90 -16,125.77 16,125.77 574,240.53 -23,759.14 597,999.67 -2,416.93%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues
7100 ꞏ Connection Fees

7110 ꞏ Connection Fees (New Constr) 4,072.72 18,105.00 4,200.72 18,105.00 56,125.00 12,500.00 -12,500.00 100,608.44 125,000.00 -24,391.56 80.49%

7130 ꞏ Conn. Fees, PFP (New Constr) 6,879.11 9,029.00 5,406.00 9,029.00 27,087.00 10,833.37 -10,833.37 57,430.11 108,333.34 -50,903.23 53.01%

Total 7100 ꞏ Connection Fees 10,951.83 9,029.00 23,511.00 4,200.72 27,134.00 83,212.00 23,333.37 -23,333.37 158,038.55 233,333.34 -75,294.79 67.73%

7600 ꞏ Bond Revenues, G.O. 2,050.10 1,396.19 21,116.20 560,710.15 2,352.01 69,880.54 1,103.34 95,869.63 -95,869.63 658,608.53 958,696.66 -300,088.13 68.7%

Total 7000 ꞏ Capital Account Revenues 10,951.83 11,079.10 24,907.19 21,116.20 560,710.15 6,552.73 97,014.54 84,315.34 119,203.00 -119,203.00 816,647.08 1,192,030.00 -375,382.92 68.51%

Total Other Income 10,951.83 11,079.10 24,907.19 21,116.20 560,710.15 6,552.73 97,014.54 84,315.34 119,203.00 -119,203.00 816,647.08 1,192,030.00 -375,382.92 68.51%

Other Expense
8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program

8100 ꞏ Water 52,240.72 57,197.72 118,127.12 213,799.88 166,380.61 173,886.45 45,425.14 45,791.63 -45,791.63 827,057.64 457,916.66 369,140.98 180.61%

Total 8000 ꞏ Capital Improvement Program 52,240.72 57,197.72 118,127.12 213,799.88 166,380.61 173,886.45 45,425.14 45,791.63 -45,791.63 827,057.64 457,916.66 369,140.98 180.61%

9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses
9100 ꞏ Interest Expense - GO Bonds 117,108.56 113,430.11 19,211.62 -19,211.62 230,538.67 192,115.84 38,422.83 120.0%

9125 ꞏ PNC Equipment Lease Interest 1,332.23 1,321.33 1,309.69 1,298.01 1,286.30 1,274.57 1,262.80 1,251.01 2,466.53 1,268.38 -1,268.38 12,802.47 12,684.16 118.31 100.93%

9150 ꞏ SRF Loan 163,905.22 6,072.75 -6,072.75 163,905.22 60,727.50 103,177.72 269.9%

9200 ꞏ I-Bank Loan 11,062.63 11,062.63

9210 ꞏ Conservation Program/Rebates 350.00 150.00 450.00 200.00 200.00 250.00 -250.00 1,350.00 2,500.00 -1,150.00 54.0%
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 10:15 PM
 04/12/20
 Accrual Basis

 Montara Water & Sanitary District
 Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water

 July 2019 through June 2020

Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Jul '19 - Jun 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Total 9000 ꞏ Capital Account Expenses 1,332.23 118,429.89 1,659.69 1,298.01 1,436.30 165,179.79 12,775.43 114,881.12 2,666.53 26,802.75 -26,802.75 419,658.99 268,027.50 151,631.49 156.57%

Total Other Expense 1,332.23 170,670.61 58,857.41 119,425.13 215,236.18 331,560.40 186,661.88 114,881.12 48,091.67 72,594.38 -72,594.38 1,246,716.63 725,944.16 520,772.47 171.74%

Net Other Income 9,619.60 -159,591.51 -58,857.41 -94,517.94 -194,119.98 229,149.75 -180,109.15 -17,866.58 36,223.67 46,608.62 -46,608.62 -430,069.55 466,085.84 -896,155.39 -92.27%

Net Income 129,901.94 -40,679.54 38,241.01 -35,981.15 -203,122.25 366,380.29 -63,379.52 -24,805.57 -22,384.23 30,482.85 -30,482.85 144,170.98 442,326.70 -298,155.72 32.59%
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

   

SUBJECT:   SAM Flow Report for March 2020 

 
 
The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) has prepared the following attached 
reports for the SAM Board of Directors and the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board: 
 

• Flow Report for March 2020. 
 

• Collection System Monthly Overflow Report – March 2020. 
 
The Average Daily Flow for Montara was 0.283 MGD in March 2020.  There was 
no reportable overflow in March in the Montara System. SAM indicates there 
were 2.23 inches of rain in March 2020.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Review and file.  
 
 
Attachments 
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12 Month Rolling Total Sewer Cleaning Summary 
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Aug - 19 8,042 22,405 15,720 46,167 8.7 
Sept - 19 7,292 18,063 11,618 36,973 7.0 
Oct -19 16,104 14,144 13,611 43,859 8.3 
Nov -19 6,171 23,308 10,135 39,614 7.5 
Dec - 19 6,660 18,277 9,422 34,359 6.5 
Jan -20 6,947 11,809 11,218 29,974 5.7 
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of: May 7, 2020 

 
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  
SUBJECT:   Review of Current Investment Portfolio 

 
 
The District’s Investment Policy and Guidelines requires that the Board review 
the status of the current investment portfolio. The following summarizes the 
status of these accounts: 
 

 The District has most of its idle sewer funds deposited in the State 
of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The Monthly 
Average interest rate for March 2020 the rate was 1.787. 

 
  

 

 The District has one checking account with Wells Fargo Bank for 
Water and Sewer Funds that is largely backed by Federal securities. 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
District staff attempts to cash manage idle funds in LAIF as long as possible 
before transferring to the Wells Fargo checking accounts for disbursements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 
 

                                   TO:                BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Connection Permit Applications Received 

 
As of May 7, 2020 the following new Sewer Connection Permit application was 
received since the last report: 
 

Date of 
Application 

Property 
Owner 

Site Address Home 
Size 

    

 
As of May 7, 2020 the following new Water (Private Fire Sprinkler) Connection 
Permit application was received since the last report: 
 

Date of 
Application 

Property Owner Site Address Home 
Size 

04-20-20 Chester White 615 Lancaster, Moss 
Beach 

SFD 

 
As of May 7, 2020 the following new Water Connection Permit application was 
received since the last report: 
 

Date of 
App. 

Property 
Owner 

Site Address Home 
Size 

Type of 
Connection 

03-27-20 
 
 

Randy 
Dardenelle 
 

323 Cypress, Moss 
Beach 
 

SFD & 
Comm 

  

Domestic/ 
Commercial 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
No action is required.  This is for Board information only. 
 
 
 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: May 7th, 2020

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Production Report 

The attached two charts summarize the monthly water production for 
the District. 
The first shows a consolidated from all sources by month.  The 
second shows each water source the District uses, both wells and 
surface water.  The production is shown in gallons of water produced. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s information 
only.  

Attachments: 2 



January February March April May June July August September October November December
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting of: May 7th, 2020 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Rain Report 

The attached chart shows the monthly rainfall at Alta Vista Treatment 
Plant for the current and prior water years along with seven-year 
average rain fall. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  These reports are provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 2 



Annual Cumulative Rainfall  

 

 

 



Monthly Cumulative Rainfall  

 

 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of: May 7th, 2020

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Solar Energy Report 

The attached chart summarizes the monthly solar production at 
the Alta Vista Array.  Since the installation of the solar panels 
the District produced 44,349 kWh and saved  75,393 lbs of CO2.

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required.  This information is provided for the Board’s 
information only.  

Attachments: 1 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
total kWh 104 167 176

104

167

176

kW
h

SOLAR ENERGY PRODUCED IN 2020 (kWh)



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Monthly Public Agency Retirement Service 

Report for February 2020. 

 
The District has received the monthly PARS report for February 2020. 
 
 
Contributions are calculated on a bi-weekly basis, and contributions are made on 
a monthly basis.  
 
The following monthly reports are submitted as consent agenda items on a 
monthly basis. 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 This is for Board information only. 
 
Attachment 
 





February 2020 PARS Statement
Detail Information

PARS Beginning Balance as of February 1, 2020 851,884.34$    

Contributions:

January 15, 2019 Calculation Sewer Water Total

Wages  29,345.10$         9,719.47$     19,625.63$   29,345.10$  

Employer ‐ 6.92% 2,030.68$            672.59$         1,358.09$     2,030.68$    
Employee ‐ 7.75% 2,274.25$           
Contributions Subtotal 4,304.93$        

January 31, 2019 Calculation Sewer Water Total

Wages  31,218.86$         10,206.07$   21,012.79$   31,218.86$  

Employer ‐ 6.92% 2,160.35$            706.26$         1,454.09$     2,160.35$    
Employee ‐ 7.75% 2,419.46$           
Contributions Subtotal 4,579.81$        

Rounding 0.01$                

Total Contributions thru January 8,884.74$        
Rounding

8,884.74$        

Earnings ($47,215.27)

Expenses (392.25)$          

Distributions (1,084.63)$       

PARS Ending Balance as of January 812,076.93$    

Fund Impact ‐ PARS Wages



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Draft 

Water and Sewer Budget.  

 
Every year the Board reviews MWSD’s budgets in draft form to provide input to 
staff . At this time sewer flows are still being assessed by the consultant and 
sewer revenue unknown. Water and sewer CIP’s are also in need to be refined 
and are still reviewed by staff.  
 
 
 
Peter Medina with Maze & Associates is available to present the draft budget. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This item is for Board discussion and direction to staff, as well as referral to the 
finance committee. The finalized budgets will be presented for adoption at a 
subsequent meeting. 
 
Attachments 



Cash flow summary
Operating cash flow
Operating income  FY 2019-2020  FY 2020-2021 Variance (%)  Variance ($) 

Sewer Service Charges  $ 3,006,212  $ 3,276,000 8.97%  $ 269,788 

Cell Tower Lease  $ 37,000  $ 37,500 1.35%  $ 500 

Fees & Other  $ 21,100  $ 13,100 -37.91%  $ (8,000)

Property Tax  $ 275,000  $ 275,000 0.00%  $ -   

Waste Collection Revenues  $ 23,000  $ 24,000 4.35%  $ 1,000 

        Total operating income  $ 3,362,312  $ 3,625,600 

Operating expenses

Personnel  $ (350,129)  $ (363,409) 3.79%  $ 13,280 

Professional Services  $ (500,200)  $ (289,700) -42.08%  $ (210,500)

Facilities & Administration  $ (56,950)  $ (57,000) 0.09%  $ 50 

Engineering  $ (62,000)  $ (60,000) -3.23%  $ (2,000)

Pumping  $ (45,000)  $ (45,000) 0.00%  $ -   

Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside  $ (1,960,688)  $ (1,948,790) -0.61%  $ (11,898)

All other Accounts  $ (69,860)  $ (75,610) 8.23%  $ 5,750 

    Total operating expenses  $              (3,044,827)  $              (2,839,509)

Net Cash Flow Provided by Operations 317,485$        786,091$        
Investment cash flow
Investment income

Interest Revenue  $ 50,000  $ 60,000 20.00%  $ 10,000 

     Total investment income  $ 50,000  $ 60,000 

Investment expenses

Capital Improvement Program  $ (1,486,085)  $ (1,985,272) 33.59%  $ 499,187 

     Total investment expenses  $              (1,486,085)  $              (1,985,272)

Net Cash Flow Used by Investments (1,436,085)$   (1,925,272)$   
Financing cash flow
Financing income

Connection Fees  $ 200,000  $ 150,000 -25.00%  $ (50,000)

     Total financing income  $ 200,000  $ 150,000 

Financing expenses

Loan Interest Expense  $ (37,803)  $ (35,116) -7.11%  $ (2,688)

Loan Principal Payment  $ (87,133)  $ (93,512) 7.32%  $ 6,379 

     Total financing expenses  $ (124,936)  $ (128,627)

Net Cash Flow Provided by Financing Activities 75,064$          21,373$          

Overall projected cash flow (1,043,536)$   (1,117,808)$   

Transfer from Sewer Reserves 1,043,536$     1,117,808$     *

Net cash flow -$  -$  

* Please see discussion of Sewer reserve funds on page 23. In addition, please review the Sewer CIP project summary list on page 17.

Montara Water & Sanitary
Budgeted Cash Flow - Sewer

Fiscal year 2020-2021
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Cash flow summary
Operating cash flow
Operating income  FY 2019-2020  FY 2020-2021 Variance (%)  Variance ($) 

Water Sales  $                1,944,000  $                1,897,000 -2.42%  $                    (47,000)

Cell Tower Lease  $                     37,000  $                     37,500 1.35%  $                          500 

Fees & Other  $                     14,000  $                     15,000 7.14%  $                       1,000 

Property Tax  $                   275,000  $                   275,000 0.00%  $                             -   

Backflow Testing & Other  $                     18,000  $                     18,000 0.00%  $                             -   

        Total operating income  $                2,288,000  $                2,242,500 

Operating expenses

Personnel  $                  (886,161)  $                  (947,044) 6.87%  $                     60,882 

Professional Services  $                  (377,500)  $                  (226,500) -40.00%  $                  (151,000)

Facilities & Administration  $                  (114,300)  $                    (71,000) -37.88%  $                    (43,300)

Engineering  $                  (380,500)  $                  (220,000) -42.18%  $                  (160,500)

Pumping  $                  (105,700)  $                  (110,700) 4.73%  $                       5,000 

Supply  $                    (47,500)  $                    (37,500) -21.05%  $                    (10,000)

Collection/Transmission  $                    (82,500)  $                    (80,500) -2.42%  $                      (2,000)

Treatment  $                    (85,000)  $                    (85,000) 0.00%  $                             -   

All Other Accounts  $                  (127,350)  $                  (139,300) 9.38%  $                     11,950 

        Total operating expenses  $               (2,206,511)  $               (1,917,544)

Net Cash Flow Provided by Operations 81,489$           324,956$         
Investment cash flow
Investment income

GO Bonds, Assessment Receipts  $                1,150,436  $                1,150,436 0.00%  $                             -   

Water System Reliability Charge  $                1,000,000 

     Total investment income  $                1,150,436  $                2,150,436 

Investment expenses

Capital Improvement Program  $                  (549,500)  $               (1,108,750) 101.77%  $                   559,250 

     Total investment expenses  $                  (549,500)  $               (1,108,750)

Net Cash Flow Used by Investments 600,936$         1,041,686$      
Financing cash flow
Financing income

Connection Fees  $                   280,000  $                   150,000 -46.43%  $                  (130,000)

     Total financing income  $                   280,000  $                   150,000 

Financing expenses

Long Term Debt - Interest Expense  $                  (318,633)  $                  (292,561) -8.18%  $                    (26,072)

Long Term Debt - Principal Payment  $               (1,189,448)  $               (1,175,875) -1.14%  $                    (13,573)

     Total financing expenses  $               (1,508,081)  $               (1,468,436)

Net Cash Flow Provided by Financing Activities (1,228,081)$    (1,318,436)$    

Overall projected cash flow (545,656)$       48,206$           

Transfer to Water Reserves (545,656)$       48,206$           *

Net cash flow -$                 -$                 

* Please see discussion of Water reserve funds on page 22. 

Montara Water & Sanitary
Budgeted Cash Flow - Water

Fiscal year 2020-2021
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GL codes: 4220 - 6950

MWSD — Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operations Budget - SEWER ENTERPRISE

Operating Revenue GL Codes
2017-18 
Actual

2018-19 
Actual

Approved 
Budget 2019-

Income/Expenditures 
as of March 31, 2020 % To date Projected

Projected as 
% of Budget

Proposed Budgeted 
amounts 2020-21

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2019-2020 $

Increase/(decrease) 
%

Cell Tower Lease: 4220 35,632 36,752 37,000 28,379 76.70% 37,839 102.27% 37,500 500 1.35%
Administrative Fees (New Construction): 4410 4,040 3,647 3,600 3,794 105.39% 5,059 140.52% 3,600 0 0.00%

Administrative Fees (Remodel): 4420 0 0 2,000 542 27.10% 723 36.13% 1,000 (1,000) -50.00%
Inspection Fees (New Construction): 4430 3,339 3,448 3,500 3,584 102.40% 4,779 136.53% 3,500 0 0.00%

Inspection Fees (Remodel): 4440 0 4,000 512 12.80% 683 17.07% 1,000 (3,000) -75.00%
Mainline Extension Fees: 4450 1,500 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 #DIV/0!

Remodel Fees: 4460 10,278 5,376 8,000 2,239 27.99% 2,985 37.32% 4,000 (4,000) -50.00%
Grants: 4510 0 112 100.00% 149 100.00% 0 #DIV/0!

Property Tax Receipts: 4610 367,805 404,079 275,000 290,129 105.50% 410,000 149.09% 275,000 0 0.00%
Sewer Service Charges: 4710 2,053,963 2,610,244 3,010,212 1,728,243 57.41% 3,010,212 100.00% 3,280,000 269,788 8.96%

Sewer Service Refunds, Customer: 4720 (2,343) 496 (4,000) (6,245) 156.12% (8,326) 208.16% (4,000) 0 0.00%
Waste Collection Revenues: 4760 21,677 23,172 23,000 17,302 75.23% 23,069 100.30% 24,000 1,000 4.35%

Other Revenue: 4990 3,378 2,825 1,991 100.00% 2,655 100.00%
Total Operating Revenue: 2,499,269 3,090,039 3,362,312 2,070,582 61.58% 3,489,826 103.79% 3,625,600 263,288 7.83%

Operating Expenses
Bank Fees: 5190 6,654 6,875 7,500 4,319 57.59% 5,759 76.78% 6,750 (750) -10.00%

Board Meetings: 5210 1,836 3,928 3,000 2,610 87.00% 3,480 116.00% 3,000 0 0.00%
Director Fees: 5220 3,900 2,288 4,000 3,075 76.88% 4,100 102.50% 4,000 0 0.00%

Election Expenses: 5230 0 4,265 5,000 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 5,000 0 0.00%
Conference Attendance: 5250 3,131 2,467 5,000 238 4.76% 317 6.35% 5,000 0 0.00%

Information Systems: 5270 1,224 1,725 4,000 15,396 384.90% 20,528 513.20% 4,000 0 0.00%
Fidelity Bond: 5310 0 438 500 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 500 0 0.00%

Property & Liability Insurance: 5320 2,161 7,737 2,000 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 8,000 6,000 300.00%
LAFCO Assessment: 5350 1,601 1,794 2,000 1,766 88.30% 2,355 117.73% 2,500 500 25.00%

Meeting Attendance, Legal: 5420 6,951 14 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 #DIV/0!
General Legal: 5430 209,412 183,515 412,500 92,523 22.43% 123,364 29.91% 200,000 (212,500) -51.52%

Maintenance, Office: 5510 4,020 7,230 8,000 3,338 41.73% 4,451 55.63% 8,000 0 0.00%
Meetings, Local: 5520 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0

Memberships: 5530 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0
Office Supplies: 5540 6,243 5,681 8,000 4,231 52.89% 5,641 70.52% 6,000 (2,000) -25.00%

Postage: 5550 277 2,043 2,650 544 20.53% 725 27.37% 2,000 (650) -24.53%
Printing & Publishing: 5560 2,909 2,490 5,000 620 12.40% 827 16.53% 5,000 0 0.00%

Accounting: 5610 31,276 26,503 30,000 27,225 90.75% 36,300 121.00% 32,000 2,000 6.67%
Audit: 5620 18,000 13,000 13,000 8,150 62.69% 10,867 83.59% 13,000 0 0.00%

Consulting: 5630 35,859 25,261 35,000 34,532 98.66% 46,043 131.55% 35,000 0 0.00%
Data Services: 5640 5,851 6,079 6,200 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 6,200 0 0.00%

Labor & HR Support: 5650 2,484 2,442 2,500 2,135 85.40% 2,847 113.87% 2,500 0 0.00%
Payroll Services: 5660 940 949 1,000 750 75.00% 1,000 100.00% 1,000 0 0.00%

Other Professional Services: 5690 0 0 3,350 100.00% 4,467 100.00% 0
San Mateo County Tax Roll Charges: 5710 0 119 1,000 119 11.90% 159 15.87% 1,000 0 0.00%

Telephone & Internet: 5720 18,961 25,300 24,000 23,653 98.55% 31,537 131.41% 20,000 (4,000) -16.67%
Mileage Reimbursement: 5730 564 1,570 1,500 327 21.83% 437 29.11% 1,500 0 0.00%

Reference Materials: 5740 0 87 200 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 200 0 0.00%
Other Administrative: 5790 0 448 (7) 100.00% (9) 100.00% 0

 CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan: 5810 18,386 18,955 17,002 16,010 94.17% 21,347 125.56% 17,585 584 3.43%
Employee Benefits: 5820 39,107 52,115 48,307 31,522 65.25% 42,029 87.01% 49,096 789 1.63%

Disability Insurance: 5830 1,360 1,360 1,401 1,275 91.00% 1,700 121.33% 1,884 483 34.47%
Payroll Taxes: 5840 16,063 15,610 18,580 11,656 62.73% 15,541 83.64% 19,218 638 3.43%

Worker's Compensation Insurance: 5960 4,082 2,622 5,473 1,402 25.62% 1,869 34.16% 3,712 (1,761) -32.18%
Management: 5910 114,908 112,113 111,733 87,009 77.87% 116,012 103.83% 116,211 4,479 4.01%

Staff : 5920 127,015 125,760 126,526 100,792 79.66% 134,389 106.22% 135,005 8,479 6.70%
Staff Certification: 5930 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,625 90.28% 2,167 120.37% 1,800 0 0.00%

Staff Overtime: 5940 918 1,435 2,821 1,539 54.56% 2,052 72.74% 1,760 (1,061) -37.60%
Staff Standby: 5950 32 0.00% 0 0.00% 0

PARS: 5850 16,909 19,459 16,487 12,642 76.68% 16,856 102.24% 17,138 650 3.94%
Claims, Property Damage: 6170 12,811 20,514 20,000 0.00% 0 0.00% 20,000 0 0.00%

Education & Training: 6195 717 559 1,000 0.00% 0 0.00% 1,000 0 0.00%
Meeting Attendance, Engineering: 6210 0 2,000 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 (2,000) -100.00%
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GL codes: 4220 - 6950

MWSD — Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operations Budget - SEWER ENTERPRISE

Operating Revenue GL Codes
2017-18 
Actual

2018-19 
Actual

Approved 
Budget 2019-

Income/Expenditures 
as of March 31, 2020 % To date Projected

Projected as 
% of Budget

Proposed Budgeted 
amounts 2020-21

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2019-2020 $

Increase/(decrease) 
%

General Engineering: 6220 68,682 33,584 60,000 25,334 42.22% 33,779 56.30% 60,000 0 0.00%
Equipment & Tools, Expensed: 6320 0 1,000 0.00% 0 0.00% 1,000 0 0.00%

Alarm Services: 6335 5,146 5,028 5,700 4,457 78.19% 5,943 104.26% 10,000 4,300 75.44%
Landscaping: 6337 2,280 2,588 3,600 2,468 68.56% 3,291 91.41% 6,000 2,400 66.67%

Pumping Fuel & Electricity: 6410 39,312 44,881 45,000 31,117 69.15% 41,489 92.20% 45,000 0 0.00%
Uniforms: 6770 0 0 0 126 100.00% 168 100.00% 0 0 #DIV/0!

Maintenance, Collection System: 6660 550 10,000 0.00% 0 0.00% 10,000 0 0.00%
Fuel: 6810 988 1,021 1,000 801 80.10% 1,068 106.80% 1,000 0 0.00%

Truck Equipment, Expensed: 6820 2 27 160 439 274.38% 585 365.83% 160 0 0.00%
Truck Repairs: 6830 780 423 1,000 622 62.20% 829 82.93% 1,000 0 0.00%

Total Other Operations: 6890 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0
SAM Collections: 6910 232,841 329,965 341,549 256,162 75.00% 341,549 100.00% 254,153 (87,396) -25.59%
SAM Operations: 6920 1,625,331 1,316,715 1,529,139 1,146,855 75.00% 1,529,140 100.00% 1,584,637 55,498 3.63%

Depreciation: 5260 555,756 408,078 0.00% 0 0.00% 0
SAM Maintenance, Collection System: 6940 0 0 40,000 0.00% 0 0.00% 40,000 0 0.00%

SAM Maintenance, Pumping: 6950 0 82,999 50,000 83,260 166.52% 111,013 222.03% 70,000 20,000 40.00%
Total Operations Expense: 3,249,479 2,932,411 3,044,827 2,046,007 67.20% 2,728,010 89.60% 2,839,509 (205,318) -6.74%

Net Change in position from Operations: (750,211) 157,629 317,485 24,575 7.74% 761,816 239.95% 786,091 468,606 147.60%
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GL codes: 7110 - 9200

MWSD — Fiscal Year 2020-21 Non-Operating Budget - SEWER ENTERPRISE

GL Codes
2017-18 
Actual

2018-19 
Actual

Approved 
Budget 2019-20

Income/Expenditure
s as of March 31, 

2020 % To date Projected
Projected as 
% of Budget

Proposed Budgeted 
amounts 2020-21

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2019-2020 $

Increase/(decrease) 
%

Non Operating Revenue
Connection Fees, Residential New Const: 7110 221,658 246,161 150,000 87,483 58.32% 116,644 77.76% 100,000 (50,000) -33.33%

Connection Fees, Residential Remodel: 7120 7,605 66,218 50,000 47,359 94.72% 63,145 126.29% 50,000 0 0.00%
LAIF, Interest: 7200 41,070 99,073 50,000 82,214 164.43% 109,619 219.24% 60,000 10,000 20.00%

Total Non Operating Revenue: 270,333 411,451 250,000 217,056 86.82% 289,408 115.76% 210,000 (40,000) -16.00%

Non Operating Expense
PNC Equipment Lease: 9125 18,222 17,492 15,221 12,802 84.11% 15,221 100.00% 13,461 (1,760) -11.57%

Capital Assessment, SAM: 9175 121,345 0 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 #DIV/0!
I-Bank Loan: 9200 23,996 22,382 22,582 11,063 48.99% 22,582 100.00% 21,655 (927) -4.11%

Total Non Operating Expense: 163,563 39,874 37,803 23,865 63.13% 28,638 75.76% 35,116 (2,687) -7.11%

Net Change in position from Non Operating 106,770 371,577 212,197 193,191 260,770 174,884 (37,313)
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GL codes: 4220 - 6890

MWSD — Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operations Budget - WATER ENTERPRISE

Operating Revenue GL Codes
2017-18 
Actual

2018-19 
Actual

Approved Budget 
2019-20

Income/Expenditures 
as of March 31, 2020 % To date Projected

Projected as % 
of Budget

Proposed Budgeted 
amounts 2020-21

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2019-2020 $

Increase/(decrease) 
%

Cell Tower Lease: 4220 35,632 36,752 37,000 28,379 76.70% 37,839 102.27% 37,500 500 1.35%
Administrative Fees (New Construction): 4410 4,545 3,126 5,000 4,336 86.72% 5,781 115.63% 5,000 0 0.00%

Administrative Fees (Remodel): 4420 1,679 0 0 542 100.00% 723 100.00% 0 0 #DIV/0!
Inspection Fees (New Construction): 4430 4,293 2,956 4,000 4,096 102.40% 5,461 136.53% 4,000 0 0.00%

Inspection Fees (Remodel): 4440 1,908 0 0 1,024 100.00% 1,365 100.00% 1,000 1,000 #DIV/0!
Mainline Extension Fees: 4450 0 3,119 3,000 4,400 146.67% 5,867 195.56% 3,000 0

Remodel Fees: 4460 4,425 5,561 2,000 2,682 134.12% 3,577 178.83% 2,000
Property Tax Receipts: 4610 367,805 404,079 275,000 290,129 105.50% 386,839 140.67% 275,000 0 0.00%

Testing, Backflow: 4740 17,858 18,420 18,000 18,264 101.47% 24,352 135.29% 18,000 0 0.00%
Water Sales: 4810 1,922,677 1,892,091 1,947,000 1,460,645 75.02% 1,947,527 100.03% 1,900,000 (47,000) -2.41%

Water Sales Refunds, Customer: 4850 (1,488) (4,670) (3,000) (2,258) 75.28% (3,011) 100.37% (3,000) 0 0.00%
Other Revenue: 4990 1,180 3,936 56,508 100.00% 75,344 100.00% 0

Total Operating Revenue: 2,360,513 2,365,369 2,288,000 1,868,747 81.68% 2,491,663 108.90% 2,242,500 (45,500) -1.99%

Operating Expenses
Bank Fees: 5190 1,618 3,495 3,750 834 22.24% 1,112 29.65% 1,500 (2,250) -60.00%

Board Meetings: 5210 1,836 3,928 4,000 2,610 65.25% 3,480 87.00% 3,000 (1,000) -25.00%
Director Fees: 5220 3,900 2,288 3,300 3,075 93.18% 4,100 124.24% 4,000 700 21.21%

Election Expenses: 5230 0 4,265 0.00% 0 0.00% 5,000 5,000 #DIV/0!
CDPH Fees: 5240 10,832 10,530 15,750 9,156 58.14% 9,156 58.13% 11,000 (4,750) -30.16%

Conference Attendance: 5250 5,697 2,467 6,000 1,146 19.10% 1,528 25.47% 6,000 0 0.00%
Information Systems: 5270 9,488 10,185 3,000 9,123 304.10% 12,164 405.47% 5,000 2,000 66.67%

Fidelity Bond: 5310 0 438 500 0.00% 0 0.00% 500 0 0.00%
Property & Liability Insurance: 5320 0 2,215 2,500 1,173 46.92% 1,564 62.56% 5,000 2,500 100.00%

LAFCO Assessment: 5350 2,208 2,520 2,750 2,465 89.64% 2,465 89.64% 2,500 (250) -9.09%
Meeting Attendance, Legal: 5420 3,211 14 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0 #DIV/0!

General Legal: 5430 24,643 24,250 231,000 80,466 34.83% 107,288 46.45% 100,000 (131,000) -56.71%
Maintenance, Office: 5510 5,561 11,015 8,000 5,137 64.21% 6,849 85.62% 8,000 0 0.00%

Meetings, Local: 5520 0 41 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0
Memberships: 5530 20,298 22,236 24,000 26,275 109.48% 26,275 109.48% 27,000 3,000 12.50%

Office Supplies: 5540 8,452 7,244 8,000 4,231 52.89% 5,641 70.52% 6,000 (2,000) -25.00%
Postage: 5550 6,379 9,318 9,000 7,170 79.67% 9,560 106.22% 4,000 (5,000) -55.56%

Printing & Publishing: 5560 1,739 3,213 3,000 1,474 49.13% 1,965 65.51% 7,000 4,000 133.33%
Accounting: 5610 31,276 26,503 30,000 27,225 90.75% 36,300 121.00% 32,000 2,000 6.67%

Audit: 5620 18,000 13,000 13,000 8,150 62.69% 10,867 83.59% 13,000 0 0.00%
Consulting: 5630 19,678 28,471 100,000 40,926 40.93% 54,568 54.57% 75,000 (25,000) -25.00%

Data Services: 5640 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 3,000 3,000
Labor & HR Support: 5650 2,484 2,442 2,500 2,135 85.40% 2,847 113.87% 2,500 0 0.00%

Payroll Services: 5660 940 949 1,000 750 75.00% 1,000 100.00% 1,000 0 0.00%
Other Professional Services: 5690 0 480 2,750 100.00% 3,667 100.00% 0

San Mateo County Tax Roll Charges: 5710 0 119 119 100.00% 159 100.00% 3,000
Telephone & Internet: 5720 22,460 31,642 27,000 27,239 100.89% 36,319 134.51% 20,000 (7,000) -25.93%

Mileage Reimbursement: 5730 564 2,188 2,000 623 31.13% 830 41.51% 2,000 0 0.00%
Reference Materials: 5740 0 0 800 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 800 0 0.00%

Other Administrative: 5790 615 791 5,265 100.00% 7,020 100.00% 1,000 1,000
 CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan: 5810 37,021 38,266 43,235 32,065 74.16% 42,753 98.89% 45,344 2,109 4.88%

Employee Benefits: 5820 74,878 84,851 88,110 51,078 57.97% 68,104 77.29% 107,614 19,504 22.14%
Disability Insurance: 5830 3,366 3,366 3,467 2,565 73.98% 3,420 98.64% 4,794 1,326 38.26%

Payroll Taxes: 5840 39,499 39,124 49,062 31,344 63.89% 41,792 85.18% 51,706 2,644 5.39%
Worker's Compensation Insurance: 5960 19,208 12,579 23,324 6,954 29.82% 9,272 39.75% 22,663 (661) -2.83%

Management: 5910 114,908 112,113 111,733 87,009 77.87% 116,012 103.83% 116,211 4,479 4.01%
Staff : 5920 360,388 356,877 446,840 296,944 66.45% 395,925 88.61% 469,638 22,799 5.10%

Staff Certification: 5930 10,042 9,275 11,400 8,283 72.66% 11,044 96.88% 11,400 0 0.00%
Staff Overtime: 5940 42,425 45,516 48,105 37,110 77.14% 49,480 102.86% 55,385 7,280 15.13%
Staff Standby: 5950 25,125 24,705 23,249 19,211 82.63% 25,615 110.17% 23,257 7 0.03%

PARS: 5850 31,691 37,916 37,636 24,880 66.11% 33,173 88.14% 39,033 1,396 3.71%
Backflow Prevention: 6160 473 764 1,000 326 32.60% 435 43.47% 1,000 0 0.00%
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GL codes: 4220 - 6890

MWSD — Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operations Budget - WATER ENTERPRISE

Operating Revenue GL Codes
2017-18 
Actual

2018-19 
Actual

Approved Budget 
2019-20

Income/Expenditures 
as of March 31, 2020 % To date Projected

Projected as % 
of Budget

Proposed Budgeted 
amounts 2020-21

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2019-2020 $

Increase/(decrease) 
%

Claims, Property Damage: 6170 0 22 10,000 695 6.95% 927 9.27% 10,000 0 0.00%
SCADA Maintenance: 6185 9,802 12,061 13,000 164 1.26% 218 1.68% 13,000 0 0.00%
Education & Training: 6195 9,911 5,098 9,000 3,297 36.63% 4,396 48.84% 9,000 0 0.00%

Meeting Attendance, Engineering: 6210 16 500 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 (500) -100.00%
General Engineering: 6220 8,503 1,467 30,000 21,562 71.87% 28,749 95.83% 20,000 (10,000) -33.33%

Water Quality Engineering: 6230 178,764 420,284 350,000 118,115 33.75% 157,487 45.00% 200,000 (150,000) -42.86%
Equipment & Tools, Expensed: 6320 7,441 11,867 8,000 15,846 198.08% 21,128 264.10% 12,000 4,000 50.00%

Alarm Services: 6335 671 718 800 539 67.38% 719 89.83% 5,000 4,200 525.00%
Landscaping: 6337 5,947 5,811 56,000 5,128 9.16% 6,837 12.21% 15,000 (41,000) -73.21%

Lab Supplies & Equipment: 6370 3,698 2,251 2,500 7,196 287.84% 9,595 383.79% 4,000 1,500 60.00%
Meter Reading: 6380 21 0 10 100.00% 13 100.00% 0

Pumping Fuel & Electricity: 6410 68,177 77,011 90,000 57,062 63.40% 76,083 84.54% 90,000 0 0.00%
Pumping Maintenance, Generators: 6420 7,777 21,339 10,000 20,908 209.08% 27,877 278.77% 15,000 5,000 50.00%

Pumping Maintenance, General: 6430 4,137 3,448 5,000 17 0.35% 23 0.46% 5,000 0
Pumping Equipment, Expensed: 6440 210 478 700 8,562 1223.16% 11,416 1630.88% 700 0 0.00%
Maintenance, Raw Water Mains: 6510 1,474 1,857 2,500 27 1.10% 37 1.47% 2,500 0

Maintenance, Wells: 6520 16,851 8,635 5,000 10,636 212.72% 14,181 283.63% 5,000 0 0.00%
Water Purchases: 6530 25,508 26,826 40,000 21,585 53.96% 28,780 71.95% 30,000 (10,000) -25.00%

Hydrants: 6610 375 0 1,000 6,481 648.10% 8,641 864.13% 1,000 0 0.00%
Maintenance, Water Mains: 6620 39,633 46,952 50,000 32,350 64.70% 43,133 86.27% 50,000 0 0.00%

Maintenance, Water Service Lines: 6630 12,389 3,506 20,000 3,519 17.60% 4,692 23.46% 15,000 (5,000) -25.00%
Maintenance, Tanks: 6640 741 1,593 1,000 4,146 414.60% 5,528 552.80% 4,000 3,000 300.00%

Maintenance, Distribution General: 6650 273 7,341 8,000 10,829 135.36% 14,439 180.48% 8,000 0 0.00%
Maintenance, Collection System: 6660 33 414 0.00% 0 0.00%

Meters: 6670 2,373 8,177 2,500 6,253 250.14% 8,338 333.52% 2,500 0 0.00%
Chemicals & Filtering: 6710 18,681 20,233 20,000 38,989 194.95% 51,985 259.93% 20,000 0 0.00%

Maintenance, Treatment Equipment: 6720 10,508 28,456 20,000 12,611 63.06% 16,815 84.08% 20,000 0 0.00%
Treatment Analysis: 6730 35,504 45,055 45,000 16,660 37.02% 22,213 49.36% 45,000 0 0.00%

Uniforms: 6770 11,166 11,459 2,000 3,483 174.15% 4,644 232.20% 2,000 0 0.00%
Fuel: 6810 5,598 6,541 10,000 4,538 45.38% 6,051 60.51% 10,000 0 0.00%

Truck Equipment, Expensed: 6820 12 309 1,000 2,488 248.80% 3,317 331.73% 2,000 1,000 100.00%
Truck Repairs: 6830 4,422 2,411 5,000 3,524 70.48% 4,699 93.97% 5,000 0 0.00%

Other Operations: 6890 238 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0
Total Operations Expense: 1,451,758 1,773,218 2,206,511 1,304,508 59.12% 1,726,711 78.26% 1,917,544 (291,968) -13.23%

Net Change in position from Operations: 908,754 592,152 81,489 564,239 692.41% 764,952 938.72% 324,956 246,468 302.46%
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GL codes: 7110 - 9210

MWSD — Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Non-Operating Budget - WATER ENTERPRISE

GL Codes
2017-18 
Actual

2018-19 
Actual

Approved Budget 
2019-20

Income/Expenditures 
as of March 31, 2020 % To date Projected

Projected as % 
of Budget

Proposed Budgeted 
amounts 2020-21

Increase/(Decrease) 
from 2019-20 $

Increase/(decrease) 
%

Non Operating Revenue
Connection Fees, Residential New Const: 7110 145,168 151,098 150,000 100,608 67.07% 134,144 89.43% 100,000 (50,000) -33.33%

Connection Fees, Residential Remodel: 7120 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 #DIV/0!
Connection Fees, Residential Fire: 7130 118,691 164,056 130,000 57,430 44.18% 76,573 58.90% 50,000 (80,000) -61.54%

Connection Fees, Residential Remodel Fire: 7140 12,893 2,032 0.00% 0 0.00% 0
Connection Fees, Well Conversion: 7150 7,800 0.00% 0 0.00% 0

General Obligation Bonds, Assessment Receipts: 7600 1,226,216 1,182,939 1,150,436 658,609 57.25% 1,150,436 100.00% 1,150,436 0 0.00%
Water System Reliability: 1,000,000 1,000,000 #DIV/0!

Total Non Operating Revenue: 1,510,768 1,500,125 1,430,436 816,647 57.09% 1,361,153 95.16% 1,300,436 (130,000) -9.09%

Non Operating Expense
General Obligation Bonds: 9100 265,164 242,762 230,539 230,539 100.00% 230,539 100.00% 208,611 (21,928) -9.51%

PNC Equipment Lease: 9125 18,222 17,492 15,221 12,802 84.11% 15,221 100.00% 13,461 (1,760) -11.57%
State Revolving Fund Loan: 9150 83,943 78,501 72,873 163,905 224.92% 163,905 224.92% 70,489 (2,384) -3.27%

Water Rebates : 9210 1,400 1,500 3,000 1,350 45.00% 2,025 67.50% 3,000 0 0.00%
Total Non Operating Expense: 368,729 383,970 321,633 408,596 127.04% 411,690 128.00% 295,561 (26,072) -8.11%

Net Change in position from Non Operating activities: 1,142,039 1,116,155 1,108,803 408,051 949,463 1,004,875 (103,928) -9.37%
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 SALARY RANGE

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT

July 1, 2020

Position

Salary 

Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8 Step 9 Step 10

Operations Manager $154,173

$123,451 $123,451 $126,537 $129,701 $132,943 $136,267 $139,673 $143,165 $146,744 $150,413 $154,173

$59.35 $60.84 $62.36 $63.91 $65.51 $67.15 $68.83 $70.55 $72.31 $74.12

Superintendent $144,487

$115,695 $115,695 $118,587 $121,552 $124,591 $127,706 $130,898 $134,171 $137,525 $140,963 $144,487

$55.62 $57.01 $58.44 $59.90 $61.40 $62.93 $64.51 $66.12 $67.77 $69.47
Water System 

Operator $88,123

$70,563 $70,563 $72,327 $74,135 $75,988 $77,888 $79,835 $81,831 $83,877 $85,974 $88,123

$33.92 $34.77 $35.64 $36.53 $37.45 $38.38 $39.34 $40.33 $41.33 $42.37
Maintenance 

Worker I $76,512

$61,265 $61,265 $62,797 $64,367 $65,976 $67,625 $69,316 $71,049 $72,825 $74,645 $76,512

$29.45 $30.19 $30.95 $31.72 $32.51 $33.32 $34.16 $35.01 $35.89 $36.78

Account Specialist $73,152

$58,575 $58,575 $60,040 $61,541 $63,079 $64,656 $66,272 $67,929 $69,627 $71,368 $73,152

$28.16 $28.87 $29.59 $30.33 $31.08 $31.86 $32.66 $33.47 $34.31 $35.17

District Clerk $73,152

$58,575 $58,575 $60,040 $61,541 $63,079 $64,656 $66,272 $67,929 $69,627 $71,368 $73,152

$28.16 $28.87 $29.59 $30.33 $31.08 $31.86 $32.66 $33.47 $34.31 $35.17

2.5 % step increases

Increase 1-Jul-16 Increase 1-Jul-17 Increase 1-Jul-18 Increase 1-Jul-19 Increase 1-Jul-20

2.70% 3.79% 2.83% 4.01% 1.66%

Operations Manager 1.027 $109,394 1.0379 $113,540 1.0283 $121,178 1.0401 $121,435 1.0166 $123,451

Superintendent 1.027 $102,521 1.0379 $106,407 1.0283 $113,565 1.0401 $113,806 1.0166 $115,695

Water System 

Operator 1.027 $62,528 1.0379 $64,898 1.0283 $69,264 1.0401 $69,410 1.0166 $70,563

Maintenance Worker 1.027 $54,289 1.0379 $56,347 1.0283 $60,137 1.0401 $60,265 1.0166 $61,265

Account Specialist 1.027 $51,905 1.0379 $53,873 1.0283 $57,497 1.0401 $57,619 1.0166 $58,575

District Clerk 1.027 $51,905 1.0379 $53,873 1.0283 $57,497 1.0401 $57,619 1.0166 $58,575

Operator in Training $19 per hour

Temporary Worker $19 per hour

5/1/2020
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Payroll  Water Overtime Doubletime On Call Cert Pay Total Health Disability WC CalPERS PARS Medicare SS F/Y Total Water
7% 6.92% 1.45% 6.20%

GM 116,211.37$   116,211.37$   13,971.25$   859.96$          1,162.11$     8,134.80$     8,041.83$   1,685.06$   7,205.10$     157,271.48$    

Superintendent 69,903.96$     1,020.83$       739.37$          1,800.00$   73,464.16$     7,182.09$     543.63$          2,020.26$     5,142.49$     4,837.35$   1,065.23$   4,554.78$     98,810.00$      

Account Specialist 64,126.15$     64,126.15$     27,942.50$   474.53$          551.48$        4,488.83$     4,437.53$   929.83$      3,975.82$     106,926.68$    

Water Operator 89,585.97$      $      7,096.89 9,798.47$       6,284.80$       2,400.00$   115,166.12$   10,191.81$   852.23$          5,182.48$     8,061.63$     6,199.35$   1,669.91$   7,140.30$     154,463.82$    

Water Operator 85,269.21$      $      6,479.74 8,219.46$       5,795.03$       2,400.00$   108,163.44$   10,191.81$   800.41$          4,867.35$     7,571.44$     5,900.63$   1,568.37$   6,706.13$     145,769.59$    

Water Operator 65,435.00$      $      4,453.43 6,087.34$       3,962.91$       2,400.00$   82,338.69$     10,191.81$   609.31$          3,705.24$     5,763.71$     4,528.10$   1,193.91$   5,105.00$     113,435.77$    

Water Operator 73,527.38$      $      2,691.00 5,655.95$       4,029.87$       2,400.00$   88,304.19$     27,942.50$   653.45$          3,973.69$     6,181.29$     5,088.09$   1,280.41$   5,474.86$     138,898.49$    

-$                

Temp. Operator 20,000.00$      $      1,668.87 1,473.21$       3,183.97$       26,326.05$     1,184.67$     381.73$      1,632.22$     29,524.66$      

Part Time Admin 1,790.75$       1,790.75$       15.40$          25.97$        111.03$        1,943.14$        

Totals 585,849.79$       23,410.76$          31,973.80$          23,256.57$          11,400.00$    675,890.92$       107,613.76$     4,793.53$            22,662.70$       45,344.19$       39,032.89$    9,800.42$      41,905.24$       947,043.64$       

Payroll Sewer Overtime Doubletime On Call Cert Pay Total Health Disability WC CalPERS PARS Medicare SS F/Y Total Sewer

GM 116,211.37$   116,211.37$   13,971.25$   871.59$          1,162.11$     8,134.80$     8,041.83$   1,685.06$   7,205.10$     157,283.11$    

Superintendent 69,903.96$     1,020.83$       739.37$          1,800.00$   73,464.16$     7,182.09$     550.98$          2,020.26$     5,142.49$     4,837.35$   1,065.23$   4,554.78$     98,817.34$      

District Clerk 61,540.53$     61,540.53$     27,942.50$   461.55$          529.25$        4,307.84$     4,258.60$   892.34$      3,815.51$     103,748.12$    

Totals 247,655.85$       1,020.83$            739.37$               ‐$                      1,800.00$      251,216.05$       49,095.84$       1,884.12$            3,711.63$         17,585.12$       17,137.78$    3,642.63$      15,575.40$       359,848.57$       
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PROJECT FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24
MWSD CAPITAL PROJECTS

Mechanical System Repairs & Replacements 95,000$               75,000$               70,500$               50,000$             50,000$              

Inflow & Infiltration Testing / Televising 25,000$               15,000$               30,000$               30,000$             30,000$              

Seal Cove Area Repair and Maint. Project 15,000$               25,000$               16,000$               10,000$             10,000$              

Replace Pump Station Pumps 37,875$               708,875$             50,525$               121,500$           1,167,500$         

Replace Medium High Priority Sewer Mains 630,710$             895,815$             1,984,750$          1,210,000$        2,172,000$         

Spot Repairs Program 100,000$             25,000$               60,000$               60,000$             60,000$              

Replace/Maintain Distillery Pump Station 5,000$                 5,000$                 50,000$               5,000$               5,000$                

Cabrillo Hwy Express Sewer (Planned 2021**) 50,000$               526,975$             668,250$           

Pump Station Communication Upgrades 80,000$               40,000$               9,000$                 2,500$               2,500$                

MWSD CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL: 1,038,585$          1,789,690$          2,797,750$          2,157,250 3,497,000

Rollover from FY 18/19 Budget:

Cabrillo Hwy Express Sewer, Phase 1A 110,000$             

Next Phase:

Cabrillo Hwy Express Sewer, Phase 1B 1,158,300$          

(**) Phase 4: $1.82M schedule for year 2025

Critical facility improvements:
Vallemar System Upgrades $337,500

* Included in Pump Stations above.

TOTAL ANNUAL COST 1,486,085 2,947,990 2,797,750 2,157,250 3,497,000
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MWSD
 Five Year Capital Improvement Program

WATER SYSTEM

Existing Customer CIP - WATER FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25
5-Year CIP 

Total

Distribution System Renewal and Replacement Program (1) 455,000$        464,100$           473,382$          482,850$        492,507$           2,367,838$       

Water Conservation Program 8,750$            9,013$               9,018$              9,288$            9,567$               45,636$            

Storage Tank Rehabilitation Program (2) 350,000$           1,000,000$       1,350,000$       

Emergency Generator Replacement Program 45,000$          45,900$             46,818$            47,754$          48,709$             234,182$          

Vehicle Replacement Fund 40,000$             41,200$            42,436$          123,636$          

EXISTING CUSTOMER CIP TOTAL 508,750$        909,013$           1,570,418$       582,328$        550,783$           4,121,292$       

New Customer CIP - WATER FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25
5-Year CIP 

Total

Water Main Upgrade Program (1) 525,000$        1,000,000$        1,030,000$       1,060,900$     1,092,727$        4,708,627$       

Existing Well Upgrade Program (3) 320,000$           329,600$          339,488$        989,088$          

New and Upgraded PRV Stations' Program (4) 250,000$           257,500$          265,225$        273,182$           1,045,907$       

Emergency Generator Upgrade Program 75,000$          77,250$             79,568$            81,955$          84,413$             398,185$          

Portola Tank Telemetry Upgrade  250,000$        250,000$          

Develop Additional Supply Reliability 100,000$          350,000$        1,000,000$        1,450,000$       

NEW CUSTOMER CIP TOTAL 600,000$        1,647,250$        1,796,668$       2,347,568$     2,450,322$        8,841,807$       

Total Annual Capital Cost 1,108,750$  2,556,263$     3,367,086$    2,929,896$  3,001,105$      12,963,099$  

Beginning Balance -$                   -$                       -$                      -$                   -$                       -$                      

Connection Fees -$                   -$                       -$                      -$                   -$                       -$                      

Annual Capital Fund TOTAL: -$                   -$                       -$                      -$                   -$                       -$                      

Less CIP (1,108,750)$   (2,556,263)$       (3,367,086)$      (2,929,896)$   (3,001,105)$       (12,963,099)$    

Total (1,108,750)$ (2,556,263)$    (3,367,086)$   (2,929,896)$ (3,001,105)$    (12,963,099)$ 

Notes:

(1) These programs include a project to merge the Alta Vista and Portola Zones to improve system reliability and to provide service to new customers.  Proposed split is 50/50

Additionally, in the following years of the CIP, these programs include a replacement of a failed main under and along Hwy 1

(2) This project includes urgent repairs needed to the Portola Tank and is coupled with the above project (1) for cost efficiency

(3) This project is for the Pillar Ridge wells' rehabilitation and upgrades

(4) This project would add new PRV stations, sampling stations, valves, and upgrade existing

CAPITAL FUND BALANCE 

5/1/2020
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Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget 
Debt Service

Original Issue  Balance  Balance 
Amount June 30, 2020 Additions Retirements June 30, 2021 Interest Expense

Sewer
CIEDB Loan (I Bank) 1,010,000$          753,602$              30,842$          722,760$              21,655$              
PNCEF Lease Obligation 927,222$             531,678$              62,669$          469,008$              13,461$              
Subtotal ‐ Sewer 1,285,280$           ‐$                93,512$          1,191,768$           35,116$              

Water
General Obligation Bonds 15,635,000$        9,661,690$           941,825$        8,719,866$           208,611$            
PNCEF Lease Obligation 927,222$             531,678$              62,669$          469,008$              13,461$              
SRF Loan 4,248,354$          3,289,866$           171,381$        3,118,485$           70,489$              
Subtotal ‐ Water 13,483,234           ‐                  1,175,875       12,307,359           292,561              

Total Debt Service 14,768,514$        ‐$                1,269,387$     13,499,127$        327,677$            

PNCEF lease obligation is split evenly between Sewer and Water. 

The District entered into an agreement with the State of California Department of health under the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund Law of 1947. This agreement constitutes funding in the form of a loan and a grant made by the State to the District to assist in 
financing the cost of studies, planning and other preliminary activities for a project which will enable the district to meet safe drinking water 
standards. 
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Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget Impact Area
Operating Reserves

Water Operating Account as of March 31, 2020

Wells Fargo Checking: 668,495$         

Current Operating Reserves as of March 31, 2020

Operating: 46,009$           

Operating Reserve:
The District's Water Operating Reserve target is two months of operating expenses.
Based on fiscal year 2020‐21 budget the amount of operating reserves is as follows:

Target calculation

1,917,544$                          Budgeted fiscal year 2020‐21
12 Months

159,795$                             Monthly budgeted operating expenses
x 2 Two months expenditures

319,591$                             Target Reserve

Conclusion:
Currently, the District has sufficient Operating Water Reserves for Fiscal Year 2020‐2021

WATER
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Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget Impact Area
Operating Reserves

Sewer Operating Account as of March 31, 2020

Wells Fargo Checking 1,046,481$      

Current Reserves as of March 31, 2020

Operating: 406,882$         

Operating Reserve:
For the District's Sewer Operating Reserve, the maximum target amount shall equal ten months' of 
operating expenses and the minimum target amount shall equal two months' of operating expenses.

Based on fiscal year 2020‐21 budget the amount of operating reserves is as follows:

Minimum Target

2,839,509$                          Budgeted fiscal year 2020‐21
12 Months

236,626$                             Monthly budgeted operating expenses
x 2 Monthly budgeted operating expenses

473,251$                             Minimum Target Reserve

Maximum Target

2,839,509$                          Budgeted fiscal year 2020‐21
12 Months

236,626$                             Monthly budgeted operating expenses
x 10 Monthly budgeted operating expenses

1,893,006$                          Maximum Target Reserve

Conclusion: Year
Currently, the District has insufficient dedicated operating Sewer Reserves for Fiscal Year 2019‐20

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2020‐21 the minimum target reserve amount will be set aside in the District's 
LAIF account and displayed on the balance sheet.

SEWER
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Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget Impact Area
Operating Reserves

Water Operating Account as of March 31, 2020

Wells Fargo Checking: 668,495$         

Current Operating Reserves as of March 31, 2020

Operating: 46,009$           

Operating Reserve:
The District's Water Operating Reserve target is two months of operating expenses.
Based on fiscal year 2020‐21 budget the amount of operating reserves is as follows:

Target calculation

1,917,544$                          Budgeted fiscal year 2020‐21
12 Months

159,795$                             Monthly budgeted operating expenses
x 2 Two months expenditures

319,591$                             Target Reserve

Conclusion:
Currently, the District has sufficient Operating Water Reserves for Fiscal Year 2020‐2021

WATER

DRAFT  

5/1
/20

20

16



Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget Impact Area
Operating Reserves

Sewer Operating Account as of March 31, 2020

Wells Fargo Checking 1,046,481$      

Current Reserves as of March 31, 2020

Operating: 406,882$         

Operating Reserve:
For the District's Sewer Operating Reserve, the maximum target amount shall equal ten months' of 
operating expenses and the minimum target amount shall equal two months' of operating expenses.

Based on fiscal year 2020‐21 budget the amount of operating reserves is as follows:

Minimum Target

2,839,509$                          Budgeted fiscal year 2020‐21
12 Months

236,626$                             Monthly budgeted operating expenses
x 2 Monthly budgeted operating expenses

473,251$                             Minimum Target Reserve

Maximum Target

2,839,509$                          Budgeted fiscal year 2020‐21
12 Months

236,626$                             Monthly budgeted operating expenses
x 10 Monthly budgeted operating expenses

1,893,006$                          Maximum Target Reserve

Conclusion: Year
Currently, the District has insufficient dedicated operating Sewer Reserves for Fiscal Year 2019‐20

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2020‐21 the minimum target reserve amount will be set aside in the District's 
LAIF account and displayed on the balance sheet.

SEWER
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Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget Impact Area
Capital and Connection Reserves

Capital Reserve:

Current Capital Reserves as of March 31, 2020

Capital: 398,249$     

Minimum Target

1,108,750$               Lowest year CIP existing customers (fiscal year 2020‐21)
750,000$                  Engineer estimate

1,858,750$       Minimum target

Maximum Target

3,367,086$               Highest year CIP existing customers (fiscal year 2022‐23)
750,000$                  Engineer estimate

4,117,086$               Maximum target

Conclusion:
Based on the above, the District does not have sufficient reserves for the minimum target Capital reserve.

For the Water and Sewer capital reserves, the target amounts are based on district engineers' estimates of the 
annual costs to replace water and sewer facilities and the five year capital improvement plans (CIP). Each Utility 
enterprise shall have a separate capital reserve. The maximum target amount shall equal the highest total 
annual amount shown in the CIP applicable to existing customers plus the district engineer's estimate of annual 
replacement capital project costs. The minimum target amount shall equal the lowest total annual amount 
shown in the CIP applicable to existing customers plus the district engineers' estimate of annual replacement 
capital project costs.

CAPITAL RESERVE

WATER
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Fiscal year 2020‐2021 Budget Impact Area
Capital and Connection Reserves

Current Capital Reserves as of March 31, 2020

Capital:  $  3,947,360 

Minimum Target

2,157,250$               Lowest year CIP existing customers (fiscal year 2022‐23)
1,177,000$               Engineer estimate

3,334,250$               Minimum target

Maximum Target

3,497,000$               Highest year CIP existing customers (fiscal year 2023‐24)
1,177,000$               Engineer estimate

4,674,000$               Maximum target

Conclusion:

Connection Fees:
Provides funds for expansion‐related capital projects caused by increases in new water and sewer 
customers. The connection fee reserves are restricted pursuant to Government Code Section 66013. 

The water and sewer connection fee reserves shall equal one year's revenue.

At the beginning of the fiscal year, the budgeted amounts will be set aside as a reserve.
Fiscal year 2020‐21  amount to be reserved is $150,000.

At the beginning of the fiscal year, the budgeted amounts will be set aside as a reserve.
Fiscal year 2020‐21  amount to be reserved is $150,000.

SEWER

Based on the above, the District has sufficient reserves for Capital minimum target.

SEWER

CONNECTION FEE RESERVE

WATER
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Sewer

Personnel Pumping
 CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan: 5810 Pumping Fuel & Electricity: 6410
Employee Benefits: 5820
Disability Benefits: 5830 Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside
Payroll Taxes: 5840 SAM Collections: 6910
Worker's Compensation Insurance: 5960 SAM Operations: 6920
Management: 5910 SAM Prior-Year Adjustment: 6930
Staff : 5920 SAM Maintenance, Collection System: 6940
Staff Certification: 5930 SAM Maintenance, Pumping: 6950
Staff Overtime: 5940
Staff Standby: 5950 All other Accounts

Bank Fees: 5190
Professional Services Board Meetings: 5210
Accounting: 5610 Director Fees: 5220
Audit: 5620 Election Expenses: 5230
Consulting: 5630 Conference Attendance: 5250
Data Services: 5640 Information Systems: 5270
Labor & HR Support: 5650 Fidelity Bond: 5310
Payroll Services: 5660 Property & Liability Insurance: 5320
Other Professional Services: 5690 LAFCO Assessment: 5350
Meeting Attendance, Legal: 5420 Meetings, Local: 5520
General Legal: 5430 San Mateo County Tax Roll Charges: 5710
Litigation: 5440 Mileage Reimbursement: 5730

Reference Materials: 5740
Claims, Property Damage: 6170

Facilities & Administration Education & Training: 6195
Alarm Services: 6335 Equipment & Tools, Expensed: 6320
Landscaping: 6337 Pumping Fuel & Electricity: 6410
Office Supplies: 5540 Maintenance, Collection System: 6660
Postage: 5550 Fuel: 6810
Printing & Publishing: 5560 Truck Equipment, Expensed: 6820
Telephone & Internet: 5720 Truck Repairs: 6830
Other Administrative: 5790 Total Other Operations: 6890
Maintenance, Office: 5510

Engineering
Meeting Attendance, Engineering: 6210
General Engineering: 6220

DRAFT  
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Water
Personnel Supply
 CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan: 5810 Maintenance, Raw Water Mains: 6510
Employee Benefits: 5820 Maintenance, Wells: 6520
Disability Benefits: 5830 Water Purchases: 6530
Payroll Taxes: 5840
Worker's Compensation Insurance: 5960 Collection/Transmission
Management: 5910 Hydrants: 6610
Staff : 5920 Maintenance, Water Mains: 6620
Staff Certification: 5930 Maintenance, Water Service Lines: 6630
Staff Overtime: 5940 Maintenance, Tanks: 6640
Staff Standby: 5950 Maintenance, Distribution General: 6650

Meters: 6670
Professional Services
Accounting: 5610 Treatment

Audit: 5620 Chemicals & Filtering: 6710
Consulting: 5630 Maintenance, Treatment Equipment: 6720
Data Services: 5640 Treatment Analysis: 6730
Labor & HR Support: 5650
Payroll Services: 5660
Other Professional Services: 5690 All other Accounts
Meeting Attendance, Legal: 5420 Bank Fees: 5190
General Legal: 5430 Board Meetings: 5210
Litigation: 5440 Director Fees: 5220

Election Expenses: 5230
CDPH Fees: 5240

Facilities & Administration Conference Attendance: 5250
Alarm Services: 6335 Information Systems: 5270
Landscaping: 6337 Property & Liability Insurance: 5320
Office Supplies: 5540 LAFCO Assessment: 5350
Postage: 5550 Meetings, Local: 5520
Printing & Publishing: 5560 Memberships: 5530
Fidelity Bond: 5310 Mileage Reimbursement: 5730
Maintenance, Office: 5510 Reference Materials: 5740
Telephone & Internet: 5720 Backflow Prevention: 6160
Other Administrative: 5790 Claims, Property Damage: 6170

SCADA Maintenance: 6185
Internet & Telephone, Communications: 6187

Engineering Education & Training: 6195
Meeting Attendance, Engineering: 6210 Equipment & Tools, Expensed: 6320
General Engineering: 6220 Lab Supplies & Equipment: 6370
Water Quality Engineering: 6230 Meter Reading: 6380

Uniforms: 6770
Pumping Fuel: 6810
Pumping Fuel & Electricity: 6410 Truck Equipment, Expensed: 6820
Pumping Maintenance, Generators: 6420 Truck Repairs: 6830
Pumping Maintenance, General: 6430 Other Operations: 6890
Pumping Equipment, Expensed: 6440
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MWSD 2020-21 Budget Prep

Schedule of changes

1 reduced SAM general expense
2 reduced temp. operator to $20K
3 Updated Water CIP ‐ $1,108,750
4 Inclusion of Water system reliability program $1M
5 Updated SAM collections, reduced $83,983.
6 Updated SAM operations, increased $39,035.
7 Updated sewer CIP, based on Nute Engineering 10 year plan. $1,985,272.
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
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M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 FROM:  Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Review and Possible Action Concerning Sewer 
Authority Mid-Coastside FY 17-18 Audited 
Financial Statements. 

At the April 16 meeting the MWSD board requested that the newest SAM audit be 
brought to the MWSD board for discussion.  

The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside’s (SAM) FY 17-18 financial statement audit 
was issued and accepted by the SAM board during their April 13th full board 
meeting. The FY 17-18 SAM audit was significantly delayed and received a 
disclaimed audit opinion due to two material weaknesses; 2018-01 – Accounting 
Personnel & Journal Entries & 2018-02 – Computer Systems. SAM’s auditor also 
noted three significant deficiencies: 2018-03 Unrestricted net position, 2018-04 – 
Long-term emergency reserves & 2018-05 Other post-Employment Benefits. 

SAM’s prior FY 16-17 audited financials also noted related significant deficiencies 
and material weakness. 

SAM’s General Manager and MWSD Accountant will be present at the meeting to 
answer questions related the outcome of the FY 17-18 financial statement audit to 
the board of MWSD.  

Recommendation: This is for board discussion and direction to staff 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
To the Board of Directors 
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Sewer 
Authority Mid-Coastside (the Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of 
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an 
audit opinion on these financial statements. 
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 
New accounting software implemented in July 2017, combined with personnel issues and limited 
training resulted in the posting of unsupported and unnecessary journal entries to the general ledger. The 
trial balance provided at the beginning of audit fieldwork contained multiple material misstatements. As 
of the date of our audit report, management was in the process of training new accounting staff and 
correcting misstatements. While some of the misstatements have been corrected, we were unable to 
satisfy ourselves, through confirmations or alternate procedures, that revenues and expenses were fairly 
stated.  
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Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 

This section of the Authority’s Independent Audit Report presents management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A) of the Authority’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018. It is intended to serve as an overview to the Authority’s required financial statements. It 
should be read in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements and accompanying notes, 
which follow this section. 

Organization and Business 
The City of Half Moon Bay (HMB), the Granada Sanitary District, and the Montara Sanitary 
District entered into a joint powers agreement (JPA) in February 1976 to create a separate public 
entity, the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (Authority), commonly referred to as SAM, to 
develop a joint waste collection, transmission, treatment disposal and management plan and 
operate the related facilities. The Granada Sanitary District and the Montara Sanitary District 
have since changed their names to the Granada Community Services District (GCSD) and the 
Montara Water & Sanitary District (MWSD). 

The Authority’s governing body, a Board of Directors (Board), comprises of two individuals 
appointed by each of the JPA member agencies. Each director from HMB has two votes and 
each director from GCSD and MWSD each have one vote. The six-member Board sets policy for 
the Authority and appoints the SAM General Manager, who serves at the pleasure of the Board. 
The General Manager is the chief administrative officer responsible for Authority operations and 
long-term planning in accordance with the Board’s policies and approved budget. 

Financial Highlights 
• The Authority had a net position balance of $14.294 million at June 30, 2018. Total net

position was comprised of unrestricted assets of $(797,716) and amounts invested in
capital assets of $15.092 million. The net position increased by $2.519 million.

• The Authority’s operating revenues were $4.679 million and total operating expenses of
$6.459 million, resulting in an operating loss of $1.780 million for the fiscal year. This
compares to an operating loss of $1.313 million for the prior fiscal year.

Using the Annual Report 
The annual report consists of this MD&A, a series of basic financial statements (described 
below) and notes to those statements. These statements are organized so that the reader can 
understand the Authority as a financial whole. The statements provide an increasingly detailed 
look at specific financial activities. The basic financial statements also include notes that explain 
some of the information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. 
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Basic Financial Statements 

The Authority consists exclusively of one Enterprise (Business) Fund. Enterprise funds utilize 
the full accrual basis of accounting. The Enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting 
utilized by private sector accounting. The Statement of Net Position is designed to represent the 
net available (non-liquid) assets, net of liabilities, for the Authority (see Table 1). 

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the success of the Authority’s 
operations over the past year and can be used to determine the Authority’s credit worthiness and 
whether the Authority has successfully recovered all its costs through the member assessments 
and other charges (see Table 2).  

The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of 
this statement is to provide information about the Authority’s cash receipts and cash payments 
during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes 
in cash resulting from operations and investments (see Table 3).  

Table 1 
Condensed Statements of Net Position (in 1,000s) 

FYE 6/30/18 FYE 6/30/17 Variance % Change 
Capital Assets $ 15,092 $ 12,250 $ 2,842    23.2% 
Other Assets $ 2,729 $ 2,735 $ (6) (0.2)%

Total Assets $ 17,821 $ 14,985 $ 2,836 18.9%
Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 939 $ 808 $ 131 16.2%
Current Liabilities $ 1,019 $ 1,027 $ (8) (0.8)%
Non-current Liabilities $ 3,247 $ 2,814 $ 433 15.4%

Total Liabilities $ 4,266 $ 3,841 $ 425 11.1%
Deferred Inflow of Resources $ 199 $ 178 $ 21 11.8%
Net Position 

Investment in Capital Assets $ 15,092 $ 12,250 $ 2,842 23.2%
Unrestricted $ (798) $ (475) $ (323) (68.0)% 

Total Net Position $ 14,294 $ 11,775 $ 2,519 21.4% 
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Table 2 

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes Net Position (in 1,000s) 
 FYE 6/30/18 FYE 6/30/17 Variance % Change  
O & M Assessments $ 2,563 $ 3,310 $     (747) (22.6)% 
Collection Services Fees $ 977 $ 977 $ 0 0.0% 
Service Fees $ 1,025 $ 5 $ 1,020 20,400% 
Other Income $ 114 $ 65 $ 49 75.4% 
 Total Operating Revenue $ 4,679 $ 4,357 $ 322 7.4% 
Treatment $ 2,555 $ 2,224 $ 331 14.9% 
Collection Services $ 737 $ 974 $ (237) (24.3)% 
Laboratory $ 152 $ 155 $ (3) (1.9)% 
Administration $ 1,459 $ 877 $ 581 66.4% 
Infrastructure $ 223 $ 348 $ (125) (35.9)% 
Depreciation $ 1,334 $ 1,091 $ 243 22.3% 
 Total Operating Expenses $ 6,459 $ 5,669 $ 790 13.9% 
Net Non-operating Rev (Exp) $ 39 $ (164) $ 203 123.8% 
Capital Contributions $ 2,685 $ 746 $ 1,939 259.9% 
Change in Net Position $ 944 $ (730) $ 1,674 229.3% 
 Total Net Position – Begin $ 11,775 $ 12,505 $ (730) (5.8)% 
 Prior Period Adjustment $ 1,575 $ - $ 1,575 #DIV/0! 
 Total Net Position – End $ 14,294 $ 11,775 $ 2,519 21.4% 
 

Table 3 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (in 1,000s) 

 FYE 6/30/18 FYE 6/30/17 Variance % Change  
Net Cash Used in O&M Activities $ 264 $ (496) $      760
 153.2% 
Net Cash by Capital Activities $ (517) $ 537 $ (1,054) (196.3)% 
Net Cash from Investments $ 44 $ 53 $ (9) (17.0)% 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $ (208) $ 94 $ (302) (321.3)% 
Cash & Cash Equivalents July 1 $ 2,300 $ 2,205 $ 95 4.3% 
Cash & Cash Equivalents June 30 $ 2,091 $ 2,300 $ (209) (9.1)% 
 
Other Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report represents 
certain required supplementary information including schedule of proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, contributions, funding progress for the Authority’s obligation to provide other 
post-employment benefits to its employees. 
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Economic Factors 
The Authority is governed in part by provisions of the State Water Resources Control Board, 
which specifies that rate-based revenues must at a minimum cover the costs of operation, 
maintenance, and recurring capital replacement (OM&R). The Authority is not directly subject to 
general economic conditions as the main source of its sewer service revenues is received directly 
from the three JPA member agencies and not directly from rate payers within the service area 
served. The Authority does not receive property tax revenue. Accordingly, the Authority sets its 
charges each year, as part of the budget process, to cover the costs of OM&R and any increments 
for known or anticipated changes in program costs. 
 
The Authority Board adopts an annual budget, which serves as the Authority’s approved 
financial plan. The Board sets all fees and charges required to fund the Authority’s operations 
and capital programs. The approved budget is used as a key control device that 1) establishes 
amounts by program type (OM&R, contract services, special projects outside of the JPA) and 
identifies projects for operations and capital activities, and 2) monitors expenses to ensure that 
approved spending levels have not been exceeded. 
 
Conclusion 
The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside financial audit was prepared by Cropper Accountancy for 
the consecutive year. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside implemented a new accounting software 
system (Incode by Tyler Technologies) as of July 1, 2016. Financial practices were reviewed and 
recommendations made for improvements in efficiency and transparency. 
 
Financial Contact 
This financial report is designed to provide our JPA member agencies and creditors with a 
general overview of the Authority’ s finances and demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for 
the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report, please contact: 
 
Supervisor of Administrative Services 
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 
1000 Cabrillo Hwy N. 
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 
(650) 726-0124 
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SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018
_________________________________

2018
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 2,090,562$      
Accounts receivable 499,919           
Interest receivable 6,323               
Prepaid expense 96,199             

Total Current Assets 2,693,003        

Non-Current Assets:
Advances 36,000             
Capital assets, non-depreciable 4,443,533        
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 10,648,152      

Total Non-Current Assets 15,127,685      
Total Assets 17,820,688      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred outflows of resources 939,053           

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 328,645
Accrued expenses 600,541
Accrued payroll 19,863             
Accrued compensated absences- current portion 70,265             

Total Current Liabilities 1,019,314        

Non-Current Liabilities:
Net pension liability 2,734,282        
Accrued compensated absences- non-current portion 47,258
Other post employment benefits 465,531           

Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,247,071        

Total Liabilities 4,266,385        

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred inflows of resources 199,387           

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 15,091,685      
Unrestricted (797,716)          

Total Net Position 14,293,969$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2018
___________________________________

2018
OPERATING REVENUE

Operating and maintenance assessments 2,563,296$      
Collection assessments 977,186           
Service fees 1,024,747        
Other income 113,831           

Total Operating Revenue 4,679,060        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Treatment 2,555,204        
Collection system 737,226           
Laboratory 151,640           
Administration 1,458,804        
Infrastructure 222,588           
Depreciation 1,333,676        

Total Operating Expenses 6,459,138        

OPERATING LOSS (1,780,078)       

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and dividend income 44,145             
Bad debts (4,821)              

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 39,324             

Increase before contributions (1,740,754)       

Capital contributions 2,685,221        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 944,467           

Total Net Position - Beginning, as previously reported 11,774,714      
Prior period Adjustment - change in accounting principle (30,036)            
Prior period Adjustment - correction of an error 1,604,824        

Total Net Position - Beginning, as restated 13,349,502      

Total Net Position - Ending 14,293,969$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2018
_________________________________________

2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Receipts from service charges and fees 4,498,560$       
Cash paid for goods and services (2,669,178)        
Cash paid for employee services (1,565,136)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 264,246            

Cash Flows From Capital And Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (3,202,152)        
Capital assessments received 2,685,221         

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (516,931)           

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received 44,145              

Net cash provided by investing activities 44,145              

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (208,540)           
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2017 2,299,102         

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2018 2,090,562$       

Operating loss (1,780,078)$      
Depreciation expense 1,333,676         
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (180,500)           
Interest receivable (3,114)               
Prepaid expenses (34,314)             
Advances receivable 12,000              
Deferred outflows (130,191)           

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 636,686            
Accrued payroll (22,077)             
Accrued compensated absences (12,863)             
Net pension liability 366,723            
OPEB liability 57,288              
Deferred inflows 21,010              

Net cash provided by operating activities 264,246$          

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided (used in) operating activities:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements10



NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
A. Reporting Entity 

Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (the "Authority") is a public entity created on February 3, 
1976 by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreements between the City of Half Moon Bay, the 
Montara Water and Sanitary District, and the Granada Community Services District 
(collectively, the “Member Agencies”). The Authority was formed pursuant to the provisions 
of Title 1, Division 7, and Chapter 5 of the California Government Code. Under this 
agreement, the Authority has the power to construct, maintain, and operate facilities for the 
collection, transmission, treatment, and disposal of wastewater for the benefit of the land and 
the residents within the respective boundaries of the Member Agencies. Authority revenue is 
derived primarily from assessments for operations, maintenance, and collections made on the 
Member Agencies. 
 
The Authority is a legally separate governmental entity and is not a component unit of 
another governmental entity. In evaluating how to define the government for financial 
reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units. Criteria used 
in evaluating the inclusion of a potential component unit includes, but is not limited to, 
financial interdependency, oversight responsibility, ability to significantly influence 
operations, scope of public service, and the existence of special financing relationships. 
Based upon the application of those criteria, no potential component units were identified 
that would be required to be included in the financial statements of the Authority. 

 
B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The Authority reports its activities as a proprietary fund.  A proprietary fund is accounted for 
on a cost of service or "economic resources" measurement focus.  This means that all assets 
and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with the activity are included on 
the balance sheet.  The reported fund equity presents total net position.  Proprietary fund 
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
position.  Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.  Revenues are 
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in 
the period incurred.  
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with the fund's principal ongoing operations.  The principal 
operating revenue for the Authority is charges to customers for services.  Operating expenses 
include personnel services, employee benefits, repairs and maintenance, professional 
services, transportation, materials and supplies, claims and judgments, rent, insurance, 
utilities, communications, general administration and depreciation on capital assets.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 
 

11



Statement of Net Position - The statement of net position is designed to display the 
financial position of the Authority. 

 
• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component consists of capital assets 

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
• Restricted - This component consists of constraints placed on net position use through 

external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, 
contributors, or law or regulations of other governments.  It also pertains to constraints 
imposed by law or constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

• Unrestricted - This component consists of net position that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." At June 30, 2018, this 
portion of the Authority’s net position is a deficit.  

 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - The statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position is the operating statement for proprietary funds.  
Revenues are reported by major source.  This statement distinguishes between operating and 
non-operating revenues and expenses and presents a separate subtotal for operating revenues, 
operating expenses, and net operating income/loss. 
 
The Authority applies all applicable GASB pronouncements for certain accounting and 
financial reporting guidance. In December of 2010, GASB issued GASBS No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This statement incorporates pronouncements 
issued on or before November 30, 1989 into GASB authoritative literature. This includes 
pronouncements by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), Accounting 
Principles Board Opinions (APB), and the Accounting Research Bulletins of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure, 
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict with GASB pronouncements. 

 
C. Assets and Liabilities 

 
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purpose of the statements of cash flows, the Authority considers cash equivalents to 
be all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased.   

 
(2) Investments 

Short-term investments include investments with remaining maturities of one year or less 
at the time of acquisition and are stated at fair market values. Long-term investments 
made by fiscal agents and deferred compensation plan agents are made under the 
investment policies of those fiduciaries. 
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The Authority’s financial assets carried at fair market value. All of the Authority’s 
financial assets are classified as Level 1, meaning that values are unadjusted quoted 
prices for identical assets in active markets accessible at the measurement date. All 
Authority investments are liquid, and fair market values are easily determined. 
 

(3) Receivables 
Accounts receivable represents revenue from member agencies and other income.   

 
(4) Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items. 
 

(5) Capital Assets 
Capital assets are those purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more and 
are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Additions and replacements of 
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost or at fair market value in the 
case of properties acquired by contribution.  
 
Expenditures that add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are 
capitalized.  Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful 
lives of the related capital assets as applicable. 
 
When property and equipment are disposed of or retired, the related costs and 
accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gains or losses arising from the disposition 
are reflected as income or expense.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to fifty years 
as follows: 

 
Sewage treatment facilities 3 – 50 years 
General plant facility 3 – 25 years 
Collection system 3 – 10 years 

 
(6) Net Pension Liability 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside's California Public Employees' 
Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans' 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
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(7) Compensated Absences 
The Authority has a policy whereby an employee can accumulate up to, but not more 
than, twice their yearly allowance of vacation time. Vacation which has been earned but 
not used by employees is accrued and is included in accrued compensation and benefits. 
No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. 
 

(8) Operating income and expense 
 Operating income and operating expense are defined as activities that result directly from 

the Authority’s operations as a sewer service provider to its member agencies. Non-
operating income and expense are defined as ancillary activities such as interest income 
on funds invested, and other costs not directly attributable to operating activities. 

 
(9) Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions.  These 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.  In addition, estimates affect the reported 
amount of expenses.  Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions. 
 

D. Budgetary Information 
The Authority is not legally required to budget any of its funds.  Budgets are adopted on a 
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles to enhance the Authority 
management's effectiveness in their financial planning efforts and to enhance control over the 
Authority's operations. 
 
Once the annual budget is approved, the Board of Directors can legally amend the budget at 
any time.   
 
All annual operating appropriations lapse at fiscal year end, except for amounts legally 
encumbered at year end. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, 
and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that 
portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary 
integration in governmental fund types. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported 
as reservation of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities, and re-
appropriations in the subsequent year provide authority to complete these transactions as 
expenditures. At June 30, 2018, the Authority had $8,608 reserved to complete projects in 
progress. 
 
In addition, project-length (or non-lapsing) budgets are adopted for capital improvements and 
other projects, and grant-funded projects or programs that may not be completed within the 
fiscal year during which the budget appropriation for the project or program originates. 
Under these circumstances, the appropriation continues until project or program completion, 
or unless the appropriation is subsequently amended or rescinded by the Authority Board. 
Budgets are adopted each year for the General Fund. This budget is prepared on a basis 
consistent with GAAP.  
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E. New Pronouncements 
 
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (GASBS) have been 
implemented for the current fiscal year: 
 
 GASBS No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 

Other Than Pensions 
 
This Statement, issued in June of 2015, replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and 
Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting 
and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans. 
 
The consistency, comparability, and transparency of the information reported by 
employers and governmental non-employer contributing entities about OPEB 
transactions will be improved by requiring: 

 
 The use of a discount rate that considers the availability of the OPEB plan's fiduciary 

net position associated with the OPEB of current active and inactive employees and 
the investment horizon of those resources, rather than utilizing only the long-term 
expected rate of return regardless of whether the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is 
projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and is expected to be 
invested using a strategy to achieve that return. 

 A single method of attributing the actuarial present value of projected benefit 
payments to periods of employee service, rather than allowing a choice among six 
methods with additional variations. 

 Immediate recognition in OPEB expense, rather than a choice of recognition periods, 
of the effects of changes of benefit terms. 
 

This Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in employer and 
governmental non-employer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its 
value for assessing accountability and inter-period equity by requiring recognition of the 
entire OPEB liability and a more comprehensive measure of OPEB expense. Decision-
usefulness and accountability also will be enhanced through new note disclosures and 
required supplementary information, as follows: 

 
 More robust disclosures of assumptions will allow for better informed assessments of 

the reasonableness of OPEB measurements. 
 Explanations of how and why the OPEB liability changed from year to year will 

improve transparency. 
 The summary OPEB liability information, including ratios, will offer an indication of 

the extent to which the total liability is covered by resources held by the OPEB plan, 
if any. 
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 For employers that provide benefits through OPEB plans that are administered 
through trusts that meet the specified criteria, the contribution schedules will provide 
measures to evaluate decisions related to contributions. 

 
The implementation of this pronouncement resulted in a prior period adjustment of 
$30,036. See Note 12 for additional detail. 
 

 GASBS No. 81- Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for 
irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance 
for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. This Statement 
enhances the comparability of financial statements by providing accounting and financial 
reporting guidance for irrevocable split-interest agreements in which a government is a 
beneficiary. 
 
The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a significant impact on the 
financial statements. 
 

 GASBS No. 82 - Pension Issues-an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and 
No. 73 

 
The objective of this Statement, issued in March 2016,  is to address certain issues that 
have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension 
Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope 
of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 
and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of 
payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of 
assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard 
of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made 
by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. 
 
The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a significant impact on the 
financial statements. 
 

 GASBS No. 85 - "Omnibus 2017" 
 
The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified 
during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement 
addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units, 
goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits 
(pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]). 
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The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency in the application of 
accounting and financial reporting requirements. Consistent reporting will improve the 
usefulness of information for users of state and local government financial statements. 
 
The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a significant impact on the 
financial statements. 

 
 GASBS No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues 

 
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and 
financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for 
transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing 
resources - resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt - are placed in an 
irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves 
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and 
notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. 
 
The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency in accounting and financial 
reporting for debt extinguishments by establishing uniform guidance for derecognizing 
debt that is defeased in substance, regardless of how cash and other monetary assets 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of extinguishing that debt were acquired. 
The requirements of this Statement also will enhance consistency in financial reporting of 
prepaid insurance related to debt that has been extinguished. In addition, this Statement 
will enhance the decision-usefulness of information in notes to financial statements 
regarding debt that has been defeased in substance. 
 
The implementation of this pronouncement did not have a significant impact on the 
financial statements. 
 

F. Future Pronouncements 
 
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (GASBS) are effective 
in future years subsequent to the current financial reporting period: 

 
 GASBS No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations 

 
This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement 
obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the 
retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform 
future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a 
liability based on the guidance in this Statement. 

 
The objective of this Statement is to improve comparability of financial statements 
among governments by establishing uniform criteria for governments to recognize and 
measure certain AROs, including obligations that may not have been previously reported. 
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This statement will enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to 
financial statement users by requiring disclosures related to those AROs. 
 
The Authority is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2019 (effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018). The Authority 
has not yet determined the impact of this Statement of the financial statements. 
 

 GASBS No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of 
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those 
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary 
activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) 
whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the 
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to 
identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are 
fiduciary activities. 
 
The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency and comparability by (1) 
establishing specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary 
activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their 
fiduciary activities. Greater consistency and comparability enhance the value provided by 
the information reported in financial statements for assessing government accountability 
and stewardship. 
 
The Authority is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2020 (effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018). This 
Statement may result in a change in current practice and have a material effect on the 
financial statements of the Authority. 
 

 GASBS Statement No. 87 - Leases 
 
The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial 
statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by 
governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial 
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or 
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a 
single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are 
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a 
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, 
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' 
leasing activities. 
 

18



This Statement will increase the usefulness of governments' financial statements by 
requiring reporting of certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will 
enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring lessees 
and lessors to report leases under a single model. This Statement also will enhance the 
decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by requiring 
notes to financial statements related to the timing, significance, and purpose of a 
government's leasing arrangements. 
 
The Authority is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021 (effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019). The 
Authority has not yet determined the impact of this Statement of the financial statements. 
 

 GASB Statement No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements 
 
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in 
notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and 
direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when 
disclosing information related to debt. 
 
This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as 
a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be 
used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date 
the contractual obligation is established. 
 
The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of 
financial statements with essential information that currently is not consistently provided. 
In addition, information about resources to liquidate debt and the risks associated with 
changes in terms associated with debt will be disclosed. As a result, users will have better 
information to understand the effects of debt on a government’s future resource flows. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2018 (fiscal 2019). The Authority has not yet determined the impact of this 
Statement of the financial statements. 
 

 GASBS Statement No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period 
 
The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of 
information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) 
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. 
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The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of 
financial statements with more relevant information about capital assets and the cost of 
borrowing for a reporting period. The resulting information also will enhance the 
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a 
reporting period for both governmental activities and business-type activities. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019 (fiscal 2021). Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of 
this Statement should be applied prospectively. The Authority has not yet determined the 
impact of this Statement of the financial statements. 
 

 GASBS Statement No. 90 - Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 61 
 
The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and 
comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate 
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain 
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity 
interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a 
government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. 
 
The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing users of 
financial statements with essential information related to presentation of majority equity 
interests in legally separate organizations that previously was reported inconsistently. In 
addition, requiring reporting of information about component units if the government 
acquires a 100 percent equity interest provides information about the cost of services to 
be provided by the component unit in relation to the consideration provided to acquire the 
component unit. 
 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018 (fiscal 2020). Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements 
should be applied retroactively, except for the provisions related to (1) reporting a 
majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a component unit if the 
government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be applied on 
a prospective basis. The Authority has not yet determined the impact of this Statement of 
the financial statements. 
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

A summary of cash, deposits and investments as of June 30, 2018, is as follows: 
 
Deposit or Investment 
Petty cash    $          500 
Demand deposits    829,936 
Local Agency Investment Fund   1,260,126  
Total Cash and Investments    $2,090,562  

 
A. Cash Deposits 

The carrying amount of the Authority's cash and deposits (restricted and unrestricted) was 
$830,436 at June 30, 2018.  Bank balances, before reconciling items, were $932,904 at June 
30, 2018 of which $250,000 was fully insured for the fiscal year and there was no money 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the Authority's 
name.  The Authority has waived the collateral requirements for cash deposits which are 
fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
 
The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan 
associations to secure a district's deposits by pledging government securities as collateral.  
This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a 
security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor.  Thus, collateral for 
cash is considered to be held by the third party bank or institution-owned trust department in 
the Authority's name.  The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of a 
district's deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure a district's 
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of at least 150% of a 
district's total deposits. 
 

B. Investments 
Cash balances are invested to the extent possible pursuant to the Authority’s approved 
Investment Policy and Guidelines and State Government Code. Investments are stated at the 
current fair value.  Fair value information is provided as quoted on June 30, 2018.   
 
The California Government Code authorizes a district to invest in their own bonds, certain 
time deposits, commercial paper, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and 
instrumentalities, bankers' acceptances with maturities not to exceed 270 days, medium-term 
notes issued by corporations operating within the U.S., commercial paper rated P-1 or higher 
by Moody's or A-1 by Standard & Poor's commercial paper record, repurchase agreements of 
obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies for a term of one year or less and the 
Local Agency Investment Fund. 
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The Authority invests in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), a State of California 
external investment pool.  LAIF determines fair value on its investment portfolio based on 
market quotations for those securities where market quotations are readily available and 
based on amortized cost or best estimate for those securities where market value is not 
readily available.  The Authority's investments with LAIF at June 30, 2018, include a portion 
of the pool funds invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These 
investments may include the following: 
 
Structured Notes are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow 
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or 
more indices and/or that have embedded forwards or options. 
 
Asset-Backed Securities, the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their 
purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and 
interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (such as CMO's) or credit card receivables. 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the fair market value of funds invested in LAIF was $1,260,126.  The 
LAIF fair value factor of 0.998126869 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments 
in LAIF.  The fair value of the Authority's position in the pool was the same as the value of 
the pool shares.  A portion of the pooled funds were invested in structured notes and asset 
backed securities and there were no investments in derivative products.   
 

C. Risk Disclosures 
GASB Statement No. 40 requires that deposit and investment risks be disclosed. 
 
Interest Rate Risk - the risk of loss of value of an investment due to rising interest rates. In 
order to limit loss exposure due to Interest Rate Risk, the investment policy limits the length 
of maturity of investments. 
 
Credit Risk - the risk of loss of value of an investment due to a downgrade of its rating or the 
failure or impairment of its issuer.  State law limits investments in commercial paper with an 
A-1 rating and all other investments with an investment grade rating issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations (NSROs).  The investment policy limits the 
Authority's investments in these investment types to the top rating issued by NSROs 
including raters Standard and Poor's, Fitch Ratings and Moody's Investor Service. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk - the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that 
are in possession of an outside party.  There are no investments in the Authority’s name in 
which the securities are held by the investment's counterparty. 
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Based upon the aforementioned criteria, the Authority's deposits and investments were 
categorized as follows at June 30, 2018:  
  
 Credit Quality   Fair 
Deposit or Investment Rating Maturities Value   
Cash on-hand or in banks N/A   Current $      830,436 
Local Agency Investment Fund Not Rated   Current     1,260,126 
   Total Cash and Investments $  2,090,562 

 
 
NOTE 3:  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 At June 30, 2018, accounts receivable are comprised primarily of amounts due from member 
agencies. See Note 5 for more detail. 

 
 
NOTE 4: ADVANCES 

 
The Authority and the General Manager entered into an employment agreement effective 
November 9, 2015, which included an advance of $60,000 for a down payment, for the General 
Manager to reside within Authority boundaries.  This advance will be forgiven in 20% 
increments upon each year the General Manager is employed with the Authority, until the full 
advance is forgiven upon 5 full years of employment. Should the General Manager leave the 
Authority before five years have elapsed, the balance of the advance becomes due to the 
Authority. The balance at June 30, 2018 was $36,000.  

 
 
NOTE 5: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Name of Related Parties  Relationship 
City of Half Moon Bay (HMB)  Member agency 

Granada Community Services District (GCSD)  Member agency 
Montara Water and Sanitary District (MWSD)  Member agency 

 
Related party transactions for the year ended June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows: 
 

 Operation 
and 

Maintenance 
Assessments  

Collection 
Assessments  

Capital 
Assessments  

 
 

Accounts 
Receivable 

HMB $   1,987,543  $ 303,060  $ 1,428,669  $ 253,257 
GCSD 769,277  251,813  736,571  27,994 
MWSD 783,662  447,199  519,981  166,691 
 $   3,540,482  $ 1,002,072  $ 2,685,221  $  447,942 
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NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS  
 

A summary of changes in capital assets and depreciation is as follows: 

 

Balance 
July 1, 
2017 

Additions Prior Period 
Adjustment Transfers 

Balance 
June 30, 

2018 
Capital assets not being depreciated:     
  Easement $          24,950 $                  - $              - $              - $       24,950 
  Land 569,740 - - - 569,740 
  Construction in progress 1,286,952 2,561,891 - - 3,848,843 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,881,642 2,561,891 - - 4,443,533 
Capital assets being depreciated:     
  Vehicles - 7,001 - - 7,001 
  Sewage treatment facilities 43,476,051 317,587  (862,899) 42,930,739 
  General plant facility 308,130 53,083 - 862,899 1,224,112 
  Collection system 625,134 166,051 - - 791,185 
  Pump stations - 96,540 - - 96,540 
Total capital assets being depreciated 44,409,315 640,262 - - 45,049,577 
Less accumulated depreciation:     
  Vehicles - - - - - 
  Sewage treatment facilities (33,490,379) (1,292,475) 972,974 862,899 (32,946,981) 
  General plant facility (223,613) (12,938) - (862,899) (1,099,450) 
  Collection system (326,731) (28,263) - - (354,994) 
  Pump stations - - - - - 
Total accumulated depreciation (34,040,723) (1,333,676) 972,974 - (34,401,425) 
Capital assets – net of  depreciation $   12,250,234 $ 1,868,477 $  972,974 $              - $15,091,685 

 
Depreciation expense was $1,333,676 for the year ended June 30, 2018.   

 
 
NOTE 7: ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

 
The accrued liabilities for compensated absences for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 were as 
follows: 

 
Balance at 

7/1/17 

  
Additions 

(Reductions) 

  
Balance at 

6/30/18 

 Estimated 
Current 
Portion 

$    130,386  $       (12,863)  $      117,523  $    70,265 
 

 

24



NOTE 8: DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 
 
The Authority maintains two deferred compensation plans, qualified under Section 457 of the 
Internal Revenue Code, in which substantially all employees may participate. Generally, deferred 
compensation is payable upon retirement, termination of employment, disability or death. The 
Authority made contributions to the deferred compensation plans of $13,485 for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018. The plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants 
and are not included in the Authority’s financial statements. 

 
 
NOTE 9: RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

A. General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the pension 
plan benefit provisions, assumptions for funding purposes but not accounting purposes and 
membership information is listed in the June 30, 2013 Annual Actuarial Valuation Report. This 
report is a publicly available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under 
Forms and Publications. All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to 
participate in the Authority’s separate Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established 
by State statute and Authority resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include 
a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits 
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All 
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit 
is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional 
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as 
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:  
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 Miscellaneous 

Hire Date 
Prior to 

January 1, 2013  

On or after 
January 1, 2013 

Benefit formula 2% @ 55  2% @ 62 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service  5 years of service 
Benefit payments monthly for life  monthly for life 
Retirement age 50 – 67  52 - 67 
Monthly benefits, as  % of eligible compensation 1.4% to 2.4%  1.0% to 2.5% 
Required employee contribution rates 7.0%  6.5% 
Required employer contribution rates 9.599%  6.908% 

 
Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan 
contributions are determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The 
Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the costs of 
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to pay any unfunded 
accrued liability. The Authority is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially 
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for 
each Plan were as follows: 

 Miscellaneous Plan 
Employer Contributions – Classic Plan $         228,730 
Employer Contributions - PEPRA 42,558 

 $         271,288 
 
B.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 

Pensions 
 

The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the risk pool collective net pension 
liability over the measurement period. 

 Proportionate Share   

 of Net Pension Liability  Miscellaneous 
Balance at: 6/30/16 - Measurement date $     2,367,559  .027361% 
Balance at: 6/30/17 – Measurement date                     2,734,282  .027571% 

Total Net Change 2016 – 2017 $        366,723   
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The Authority’s net pension liability of $2,734,282 is measured as the proportionate share of the 
net pension liability of $9,917,252,956 (or .027571%). The net pension liability is measured as 
of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. The Authority’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined.  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $257,542 for the 
Plan. At June 30, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 

Deferred 
Outflows  

Deferred 
Inflows 

 of Resources  of Resources 
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $     271,288  $                - 
Differences between actual and expected experience 3,705  (53,079) 
Changes in assumptions 459,681   (35,051) 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
  pension plan investments 103,961  - 
Differences between employer contributions and employer’s 

proportionate share of contribution -  (111,257) 
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 100,418  - 
     Total  $    939,053  $   (199,387) 

 
Of the $939,053 reported as deferred outflows of resources, $271,288 is related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability 
in the year ended June 30, 2019 (measurement period ended June 30, 2018). Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended 
June 30 

 Deferred Outflows 
(Inflows) 

of Resources 
2019  132,098 
2020  250,637 
2021  147,367 
2022  (61,724) 

Thereafter  - 
 

27



The amounts above are the net of outflows and inflows recognized in the fiscal 2017 
measurement period.  
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2017 (the measurement date), the total pension 
liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2016 total pension liability. The June 30, 
2017 total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial methods and 
assumptions: 
 

 Miscellaneous 
Valuation Date June 30, 2016 
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions:  

Discount Rate 7.15% 
Inflation 2.75% 
Projected Salary Increase Varies by entry age and service 
Mortality Rate Table   Derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds.  
Post Retirement Benefit 
Increase 

Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies. 2.75% 
thereafter 

 
The underlying mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table 
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more 
details on this table, please refer to the April 2014 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of 
Actuarial Assumptions report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2011) 
available on the CalPERS website at https://www.calpers.ca.goc/docs/forms-
publications/calpers-experience-study-2014.pdf. 
 
Change of Assumptions 
 
In the fiscal year 2016-17, the financial reporting discount rate for the PERF C was lowered from 
7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. Deferred outflows of resources for changes of assumptions 
presented in the Schedule of Collective Pension Amounts represent the unamortized portion of 
this assumption change. 
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Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% and reflects the long-
term expected rate of return for the Plan, net of investment expenses and without reduction for 
administrative expenses. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the 
calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, CalPERS the amortization and smoothing methods 
adopted by the CalPERS board in 2013 were used. For the Plan, the crossover test was 
performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk 
of failing the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-
term expected rate of return on pension investments. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests 
revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability for PERF C. The crossover test results can be found on the CalPERS’ 
website at: https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-services/gasb. 

  
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over 
the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. 
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return 
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for 
assumed administrative expenses. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of 
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate 
and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 

 
Allocation by Asset Class  

 New Strategic 
Allocation 

 Real Return 
Years 1 – 10 (a) 

 Real Return 
Years 11+ (b) 

Global Equity  47.0%  4.90%  5.38% 
Global Fixed Income  19.0%  0.80%  2.27% 
Inflation Assets  6.0%  0.60%  1.39% 
Private Equity  12.0%  6.60%  6.63% 
Real Estate  11.0%  2.80%  5.21% 
Infrastructure and Forestland  3.0%  3.90%  5.36% 
Liquidity  2.0%  -0.40%  -0.90% 
     Total  100.00%     
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(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% was used for this period. 
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% was used for this period. 

 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate - The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Authority’s 
proportionate  share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate – 
1% 

(6.15%) 

Current Discount 
Rate 

(7.15%) 
Discount Rate +1% 

(8.15%) 

$ 17,276,437 $ 2,734,282 $ 1,479,332 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

 
 
NOTE 10: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS  
 

A. Plan Description 
 
The Authority sponsors healthcare coverage for active employees through a Health 
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) plan managed by the OE3 Health and Welfare Trust. The 
Authority contributes up to $1,955 each month for medical, dental, and vision coverage. 
Employees may increase coverage and pay the excess of the Authority’s contribution. Dental and 
vision coverages are also offered to active employees. 
 
The Authority also offers a contribution for medical coverage to its retirees in accordance with 
the qualifications for Public Employment Retirement Law (PERL). Retirees may retire at age 50 
with 5 years of service. The Authority’s contribution for retirees remains frozen at the 2013 
PEMHCA statutory minimum of $115 per month, payable for the lifetime of the retiree. This 
monthly contribution is deposited to an HRA account in accordance with IRS requirements. 
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 are not eligible to receive the $115 benefit; they are 
covered under a defined contribution plan. 
 

B. Employees Covered 
 
As of the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were 
covered by the benefit terms under the Plan: 
 

Active employees 7 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving 

 
6 

    Total 13 
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C. Contributions 
 
The Authority’s currently finances benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 

D. Net OPEB Liability 
 
The Authority’s Net OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the Total OPEB 
Liability used to calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
July 1, 2016. Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation 
to measurement dates. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Salary increases 3.00% 
Healthcare cost trend rate 6.00% for 2016; 5.00% for 2017 and later years 

 
Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males 
or Females, as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the 
RP-2014 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males for Females, as appropriate, without 
projection. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on a review of plan 
experience during the period June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2016.  
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.62 percent. To determine this 
single (blended) rate, the amount of the plan’s projected fiduciary net position (if any) and the 
amount of projected benefit payments was compared in each period of projected benefit 
payments and the following information: 
 

Reporting 
Date 

Measurement 
Date 

Long-Term 
Expected Return of 
Plan Investments 

Municipal Bond  
20-Year High Grade 

Rate Index Discount Rate 
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 4.00% 3.62% 3.62% 
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Changes in the OPEB Liability 
  Increase (Decrease) 
  Total 

OPEB 
Liability 

(a) 

Plan 
Fiduciary 

Net Position 
(b) 

Net OPEB 
Obligation 

(Asset) 
= (a) – (b) 

Balance at June 30, 2017 
   (Valuation date July 1, 2016) 

 
$ 447,940 $           - $ 447,940 

     
Changes recognized for the measurement 
period 

 
   

Service cost  11,209 - 11,209 
Interest  16,042 - 16,042 
Employer contributions  - 9,660 (9,660) 
Net investment income  - - - 
Benefit payments to retirees  (9,660) (9,660) - 
Administrative expense  - - - 

Net changes  17,591 - 17,591 
     Balance at June 30, 2018 
   (Valuation date July 1, 2016)  $ 465,531 $           - $ 465,531 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the Net OPEB Liability of the Authority if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage point higher or lower than the current discount rate, for the 
measurement period ended June 30, 2018: 
 

Discount Rate 
– 1% 

(2.62%) 

Current Discount 
Rate 

(3.62%) 

Discount Rate 
+1% 

(4.62%) 

$ 531,026 $ 465,531 $ 411,609 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to the Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority if it were calculated using health 
care cost trend rates that are one percentage point higher or lower than the current rate, for the 
measurement period ended June 30, 2018: 
 

Discount Rate 
– 1% 

(5.00% decreasing 
to 4.00%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(6.00% decreasing 
to 5.00%) 

Discount Rate 
+1% 

(7.00% decreasing 
to 6.00%) 

$ 397,280 $ 465,531 $ 550,818 
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Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. 
 
Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $27,251. At June 
30, 2018, the Authority did not report any deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB. 

 
 
NOTE 11: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

 
As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB), the Authority is restating beginning net 
position in the Statement of Net Position, effectively decreasing the net position by $30,036 as of 
July 1, 2017. The decrease resulted from recognizing the net other postemployment benefits liability, 
a noncurrent liability. See Note 11 for additional disclosures regarding this presentation. 
 
At June 30, 2018, the Authority did a detailed review of the capital asset listing. It was discovered 
that some assets were over-depreciated while others were under-depreciated. The Authority reviewed 
the beginning net book value of all assets and determined that the net book value was understated by 
$972,974 in 2017.  
 
During the year, the judgment payment was revised so that 50% could be spent on Wet Weather 
Expansion Projects. This reduced the expense from last year and resulted in an increase in net 
position of $300,000.  
 
Additionally, during software implementation, adjustments of $331,850 were made by the client to 
increase net position. 
 
The net impact of these adjustments was an increase to net position in the amount of $1,574,788 as 
follows: 

Beginning net position, as previously stated  $11,774,714  
Prior period adjustments:   

Implementation of GASB No. 75  (30,036) 
Fixed assets  972,974 
Judgment capitalized to CIP  300,000 
Client entries  331,850 

Total prior period adjustments  1,574,788 
Beginning net position, as restated  $ 13,349,502 
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NOTE 12:  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; injuries to employees; errors and omissions; and natural disaster. The Authority mitigates 
its risk of liability, workers’ compensation, and property losses by being a member of the California 
Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA) and participating in their risk sharing and 
insurance purchasing pools.  
 
CSRMA is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance 
program for member agencies located throughout California. The purpose of CSRMA is to spread 
the adverse effects of losses among the members entities and to purchase excess insurance as a 
group. Although CSRMA may assess additional premiums to a member agency in the event of losses 
in excess of reserves, no additional assessments have occurred nor are they contemplated. 
 
The financial statements of CSRMA are available upon request from: The California Sanitation Risk 
Management Authority, c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., 100 Pine Street, 11th Floor, San 
Francisco, California 96111-5101. 
 

 
NOTE 13:  MANAGEMENT’S PLAN 
 

The Authority has an operating loss of $1,780,078 in the current year. The Authority had an 
unrestricted net position deficit of $797,716 at June 30, 2018. This financial trend has become a 
pattern which calls into question the ability of the Authority to operate over the next 12 months from 
the date on which these financial statements were issued. 
 
Potential vendors, including contractors on major Authority projects may see the operating deficit as 
a deterrent to doing business with the Authority. 
 
Consistent with Authority policy, management and the Board plan to alleviate any substantial doubt 
by having member agencies fund the $1.25 million reserve for the repairs and replacements as well 
as a 2-month operating reserve. 

 
 
NOTE 14:  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the audit opinion, the date on 
which the financial statements were available to be issued.  
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SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE
Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement date 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.02757% 0.02736% 0.02612% 0.02000%

Plan's Proportionare Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 2,734,282$  2,367,559$  1,793,061$  1,724,305$  

Plan's Covered-Employee Payroll 1,453,070$  1,453,070$  1,173,195$  1,048,193$  

Plan's Proportionare Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) as 
a Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 188.17% 162.93% 152.83572% 164.50%

Plan's Proportionare Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of the Plan's Total Pension Liability 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 80.84%

*Fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Last 10 Years*
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SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE
Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarally determined contributions** 271,288$     240,951$     107,752$     137,242$     

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions 271,288       240,951       107,752       137,242       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$             -$             -$             -$             

Covered-employee payroll*** 1,562,458$  1,453,070$  1,173,195$  1,048,193$  

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 17.36% 16.58% 9.18% 13.09%

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
Last 10 Years*

**Excludes employer-paid member contributions (EPMC)
*** For the fiscal year ending on the date shown

*Fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.
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SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE
Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018
Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 11,209$                  
Interest on the OPEB liability 16,042                    
Benefits paid to retirees (9,660)                     

Net change in total OPEB liability 17,591                    
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 447,940                  

Total OPEB Liability - ending (a) 465,531$                

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 9,660$                    
Net investment income -                              
Benefits paid to retirees (9,660)                     
Administrative expense -                              

Net change in plan fiduciary position -                              
Plan fiduciary net position- beginning -                              

Plan fiduciary net position- ending (b) -$                            

Net OPEB liability- ending (a) - (b) 465,531$                

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 0.00%

Covered payroll 1,566,360$             

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 29.72%

Notes to Schedule: 
Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB No. 75 is applicable. Future years' 
information will be displayed, up to 10 years, as information becomes available

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
for the Measurement Periods Ended June 30
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Actuarially determined contributions (ADC) 9,660$      

Contributions in relation to the ADC (9,660)       

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$              

Covered payroll 1,566,360 

0.62%

Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial Assumptions:

SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE

Schedule of OPEB Contributions
Last Ten Fiscal Years*

The actuarial valuation was performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles 
and practices. The actuaries relied on census data for active employees and retirees as well as 
claims, premium, expense and enrollment data, and copies of relevant sections of healthcare 
documents provided by the Authority, and when applicable, trust statements prepared by the trustee.

The assumptions used in performing the valuation and the results based thereupon represent the 
actuaries' best estimate of the actuarial costs of the program under GASB 75 and the existing and 
proposed Actuarial Standards of Practice for measuring post-retirement healthcare benefits.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Required Supplementary Information
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2700 Ygnacio Valley Road, Ste 270
Walnut Creek, CA 94598

(925) 932-3860 tel
(925) 476-9930 efax

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

To the Board of Directors 
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities, of Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside’s basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 6, 2020. 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sewer Authority Mid-
Coastside’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Sewer Authority 
Mid-Coastside’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside’s internal control. 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that 
have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the letter titled “Communication of Significant 
Deficiencies and Material Weaknesses” as items 2018-01 and 2018-02 to be material weaknesses. 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the letter titled “Communication of Significant 
Deficiencies and Material Weaknesses”, specifically identified as items 2018-03, 2018-04, and 2018-05 
to be significant deficiencies.  
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MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

 For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 

 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
  

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Remote 
Location for June 4, 2020 Public Hearing re: 
Proposition 218 Rate Increases (COVID-19) 

 

In accordance with Proposition 218, on March 5, 2020 this Board authorized staff 
to prepare and mail to all affected property owners notice of the date, time and 
place of a public hearing to consider a new water system reliability charge and 
sewer rate increases, to be held on June 4, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. at the District’s 
Administrative Offices located at 8888 Cabrillo Hwy, Montara (“Public Hearing”).  

Since the date of mailing of the Public Hearing notice, and due to state and local 
emergency shelter-in-place orders resulting from the threat of COVID-19, this 
Board determined to temporarily hold its regular meetings remotely, in accordance 
with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-33-20, for the duration of the COVID-
19 emergency.  

Because of the uncertainty of the shelter-in-place orders as of the date of the Public 
Hearing, staff recommends that remote access to the hearing also be permitted 
for those individuals who do not wish to attend in person. This remote location will 
be in addition to the location of the Public Hearing at the District’s Administrative 
Offices (in compliance with social distancing requirements) as set forth in the 
notice of Public Hearing.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt a Resolution establishing a remote place for the District’s Proposition 218 
Public Hearing, in addition to the hearing place at the District’s Administrative 
Offices.   

 



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT ESTABLISHING 
ADDITIONAL REMOTE LOCATION FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
OF THE BOARD DURING A DECLARED STATE OF 
EMERGENCY 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of 
Emergency in California as a result of the threat of COVID-19. On March 19, 
2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-33-20 which, among other things, 
directs all California residents to immediately heed current State public health 
directives, including the March 19, 2020 directive of the State Public Health 
Officer to all State residents to stay home or at their place of residence, subject 
to certain exceptions; and  

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020 and March 18, 2020, Governor Newsom 
issued Executive Order N-25-20 and Executive Order N-29-20 mandating 
compliance with state and local public health measures to control the spread of 
COVID-19 and temporarily suspending portions of the Brown Act which address 
the conduct of public meetings; and  

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2020, the San Mateo County Health Officer and 
the San Mateo County Director of Emergency Services proclaimed a local 
emergency throughout San Mateo County related to COVID-19; and  

WHEREAS on March 16, 2020, as amended on March 31, 2019 and as 
may be further amended, the San Mateo County Health Officer issued a Shelter-
in-Place Order directing all individuals to self-isolate in their places of residence 
and prohibiting non-essential public and private gatherings, in order to slow the 
spread of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the above referenced orders, this Board 
previously authorized a temporary remote meeting place to hold its regular and 
special meetings for the duration of the declared emergency, as well as to allow 
for adjustments to the procedures for the conduct of meetings as deemed 
necessary; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to direction of Board, a notice of date, time and 
place of a public hearing to consider a new water system reliability charge and 
sewer rate increases was mailed to all affected property owners, to be held June 
4, 2020 at the District’s Administrative Offices located at 8888 Cabrillo Hwy, 
Montara (“Public Hearing”); and   

WHEREAS, due to the COVID-19 emergency, the Board of Directors 
desires to adopt this resolution to provide an additional remote meeting place to 
hold the Public Hearing, as well as to allow for adjustments to the procedures for 
the conduct of the Public Hearing as deemed necessary.  



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT ESTABLISHING 
ADDITIONAL REMOTE LOCATION FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
OF THE BOARD DURING A DECLARED STATE OF 
EMERGENCY 
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  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of the Montara Water 
and Sanitary District, a public agency in the County of San Mateo, California, as 
follows: 
 
1.   The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated as though fully 
set forth herein. 

2.     The Public Hearing set for June 4, 2020 to be held at the District’s 
Administrative Offices shall also be held remotely in conformance with state and 
local emergency Orders.  

3. The Chair or District Manager is permitted to ensure compliance with 
social distancing requirements in conformance with state and local emergency 
Orders for the Public hearing to ensure the health and safety of employees, staff 
and residents while attending the hearing.  

4.  This resolution is effective immediately for the Public Hearing as set forth 
herein. 

 
 
     _____________________________________ 
     President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
 
 
COUNTERSIGNED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
 

* * * * 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. ____ duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District, County of San Mateo, California, at a Regular Adjourned Meeting thereof 
held on the 7th day of May 2020, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES, Directors:    
 
 ABSTENTION:  



RESOLUTION  NO.  _____ 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY DISTRICT ESTABLISHING 
ADDITIONAL REMOTE LOCATION FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
OF THE BOARD DURING A DECLARED STATE OF 
EMERGENCY 
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 NOES, Directors:   
 
 ABSENT, Directors:   
 
       
     _____________________________________ 
      Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 
          For Meeting Of:  May 7, 2020 

 
                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  
SUBJECT:   General Manager’s Report 
 
Operations: MWSD Operations staff repaired 1 water distribution leak at Los 
Banos, investigated 1 customer leak, replaced a sample fixture at the Drake Well, 
responded to 15 Underground Service Alerts, verified and calibrated all AVTP 
turbidimeters, repaired a chlorine pump, maintained the AVTP diversion structure, 
assisted Farallone View School with a shutdown for repairs, took all second quarter 
water samples, took and delivered four bact samples, tested 35 backflow devices, 
maintained the Portola and Schoolhouse tanks. 
 
Projects:The Highway 1 crossing Sewer Project is also close to completion. 
Hydroseeding on MWSD property is still outstanding. A possible change order to 
further improve the MWSD access road runoff may be brought to the MWSD board 
soon. 
 
Meetings: On April 6, 22, 27, 28, and 30 the General Manager attended SAM staff 
and/or member agency managers meetings to discuss the SAM draft General 
Budget and draft SAM Collections Budget. 
 
Collections: “Flushable” wipes introduced into Moss Beach collection system 
resulted in the failure of the second pump within the Covid-19 SIP. One of the 
airport lift station pumps contained clothing material.  
 
Covid-19: MWSD offices remain closed to the public since March 16. SOP’s for 
Covid-19 office and employee safety were updated since new health orders were 
issued. Since May 1 non-essential construction and permitting is allowed in SMC 
and MWSD operations is working at full capacity always adhering to social 
distancing guidelines. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
This is for Board information only. 
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